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“Coming together is a beginning, staying together is progress, and working together is 
success.” – Henry Ford

The ability to keep improving oneself throughout one’s lifetime is perhaps the greatest 
attribute of human beings. Indeed, while resilience ensures survival during times of 
hardship, the capability to make progressive interventions in the present, based on 
hindsight and experience and geared towards a brighter future, is used to articulate the full 
potential, pedigree, and endurance of our creativity. 

Great organisations also possess such humane capabilities. They stay strong and stable 
during times of crisis, but in the age of revival the wisest firms make the best of every 
opportunity for growth. Such an age is now upon us, an era of rejuvenation and expansion 
in which the wise and intrepid decisions of the bravest will pave the way for a luminous 
socio-economic future for all, in India and around the world.

We, at Jagaran, envisage a huge potential for growth that this post-COVID age, especially in 
the coming years, can facilitate in the field of microfinance services. This is because we can 
proudly claim that we possess the two main ingredients of growth: partnerships based on a 
consensus regarding the common goals of partnering entities, and cooperation, facilitated 
through mutual trust, communication, and teamwork.

Our fortitude and unwavering focus on robust and sustainable foundations in India’s 
microfinance space have allowed us not only to overcome a period of vulnerability but 
also to come back stronger than ever, as it were. While the previous financial year was a 
period where we established balance, stability, and a record of profit, this year has perhaps 
been our best year for partnerships! This financial year, keeping in mind our broader aim 
of consolidating Jagaran’s operations across the eastern zone of India, we have established 
successful business relationships with five new partners. In collaboration with them, we 
have decided to outline a course of operations that will deepen our penetration into this 
zone’s burgeoning microfinance sector. 



This year, we and our partners have grown together, maximising the scope of 
the symbiotic relationships we have developed and fostering an open, growth-
oriented culture of mutual cooperation. In turn, our collective growth has 
benefitted our customers and stakeholders alike. Thus, we are delighted to 
announce that considering our ultimate goal of poverty eradication and economic 
empowerment in the areas where we operate, we plan to deepen these fruitful 
partnerships in the coming years.

Going forward, we plan to propel our growth as a microfinance firm to the greatest 
possible extent, keeping in mind the well-being of our current customers and also 
trying to reach other locales, communities, and people who urgently require our 
services. To this end, we are encouraged by regulatory bodies like the Reserve 
Bank of India (RBI) as well as the ‘missing middle piece’ in the equation of growth, 
the Indian government itself. 

The RBI and the Indian government are looking to structure our nation’s economy 
in a growth-based fashion after overcoming the impacts of economic watersheds 
wrought by the global COVID-19 pandemic. In alignment with these entities, 
we, at Jagaran, plan to establish and develop more synergies in the domain of 
microfinance services, keeping the goal of partnership-based growth at the 
forefront of our future plans. Catching the wind, so to speak, through the new 
RBI guidelines that have increased the Indian government’s involvement in the 
microfinance sector, we aim to sail smoothly and successfully on the path of 
Jagaran’s consolidation and expansion. 

We firmly believe that traversing this path will enable us to keep fulfilling our 
primary goal of poverty eradication in a holistic and streamlined manner. Many 
rural and semi-urban communities in the eastern zone of India are yet to access 
the benefits of the microfinance services, financial education, and affirmative 
action services that we provide. In the coming years, we want to reach more of 
such communities while simultaneously developing a space of equity for our 
existing and future partners. With regard to these aims, we want to invite entities 
within the global impact investor community to put their faith in our excellent 
record within India’s microfinance sector and to invest in our current and future 
endeavours.

Finally, we celebrate and congratulate the amazing collaborative and cooperative 
efforts that our employees, teams, management, and partners have made to 
render us ready to walk the current path of profitable, sustainable growth. They 
have truly instilled in us the conviction that ‘working together is success’. We, at 
Jagaran, are overjoyed to have the support of our stakeholders and our partners 
as we look back on our illustrious journey of growth in the financial year 2022-
2023.



OUR
PRINCIPLES

Jagaran works with sections of society that are financially disadvantaged and 
vulnerable. We imagine a world where these sections can overcome their precarious 
financial circumstances and assimilate themselves as active participants in the 
economy of our nation. In alignment with this vision, we primarily focus on the 
socio-economic empowerment of women within the communities/locations where 
we operate. Additionally, we strive to inculcate economic literacy in our target 
communities via investments and financial advice, using which they are able to 
develop excellent entrepreneurial programmes. In summary, we seek to make our 
clients financially self-sufficient and to ease their access to financial resources, thus 
ensuring better outcomes in terms of their health, education and livelihoods.

As a growing microfinance institution, Jagaran is committed to advancing the socio-
economic prosperity of people living and working in rural and semi-urban India. By 
cultivating entrepreneurial dispositions and offering robust employment prospects 
among these socio-economically disadvantaged sections of the nation, with a special 
focus on the concomitant empowerment of women, we aim to holistically achieve our 
overarching goal: to improve the overall quality of life of the financially vulnerable. 
Therefore, we work in concert towards a future where the growth of our institution 
can reflect and reinforce the socio-economic improvement of our target communities.

Vision

Mission



First and foremost, the establishment and consolidation of crucial and consequential customer relationships together 
form the kernel around which Jagaran’s values are developed. The first step towards achieving the same involves reaching 
out to current and prospective customers, in addition to consistently communicating with them about possible financial 
options, entrepreneurial ventures and other benefits that they can avail of with the help of Jagaran. This necessitates a 
collaborative effort by Jagaran’s team, its management, its investors and its customer communities, ensuring synergies 
between these groups to pave the way for the socio-economic well-being of rural and semi-urban India.

Through such a participatory system of operations, Jagaran is able to expand its reach and increase the financial 
knowledge of its customers, many of whom might otherwise remain deprived of information about the ways in which 
they can improve their social and financial situations. Through such synergies it maintains an environment of empathy, 
openness, understanding and respect that prioritises local participation in operations and forms the crux of Jagaran’s 
value system. This environment is supported by Jagaran’s four ‘cornerstone’ values: transparency, integrity, determination 
and innovation.

One’s integrity is assured only after they demonstrate the 
ability to successfully endure the most elaborate forms 
of scrutiny. In this regard, we, at Jagaran, foreground 
our preparedness for investigations on integrity, at both 
collective and individual levels. Indeed, we undergo audits 
from leading firms, perform stress tests to gauge our 
compliance standards, adhere to the multi-stakeholder 
grievance reporting, review and redress mechanisms we 
have instituted and finally ensure the strict observance 
of regulatory requirements as outlined by the RBI Circular 
on Fair Practice, the Master Direction provided by NBFC-
MFI, the Fair Practice Code and the Vigil Mechanism Policy. 
Hence, the maintenance of Jagaran’s integrity pivots on 
the cooperation of all our stakeholders who imbue our 
operations with honesty and transparency. 

The thriving of a nation’s microfinance sector is the basis 
for its holistic socio-economic growth. This is because 
microfinance firms across nations address and improve the 
financial and social predicaments of those who are situated 
at the base of their nations’ socio-economic pyramids. 

While the balance of India’s microfinance sector has been 
often disturbed in the recent times, owing to governance 
and planning-related issues as well as natural disasters and 
health crises, this financial year has made us very optimistic 
about the growth of microfinance especially in the eastern 
zone of India. A delight to witness the Indian government 
and the RBI working in tandem to propel the development 
of this sector over this financial year, Jagaran is confident 
that its own partnership-based growth and inclusive 
socio-economic services will help consolidate the firm as 
a support system for the development of rural and semi-
urban India in the future. 

Sudden developments and a general mercuriality mark 
India’s microfinance sector. Jagaran has itself has braved 
through such abrupt and acute transformations over 
the many years of its operations. Thus, we have always 
prioritised flexibility and innovation within Jagaran in order 
to respond to shifting circumstances in the best possible 
way. Hence, we consistently draft and survey new strategies 
to scale up our operations, streamline daily functions, 
improve service delivery and always appraise our goals 
while simultaneously making sure we devote our undivided 
attention towards our customers. Moreover, this financial 
year we have emphasised on the need to consolidate our 
presence and expand the scope of our operations; the 
best way to do the same, as we have averred, is to seek 
and engage in lasting partnerships with investor entities 
and communities that not only understand our vision and 
mission but also offer us the wherewithal to achieve the 
same.

Many of those who live and work in locations where 
Jagaran is active are likely to be uninformed regarding the 
financial and advisory services that we offer. To overcome 
this deficit, we frequently hold outreach programmes so 
that our target communities are aware of the features, 
advantages and effectiveness of our products and 
services. As a result, these communities not only acquire 
useful knowledge about robust financial schemes but 
are also able to reject any fraudulent socio-economic 
programmes that may still be hampering the all-round 
growth of India’s rural and semi-urban socio-economic 
landscape. 

On the other hand, Jagaran also engages with all its 
partners on a transparent and cooperative footing, 
fostering a space of solidarity where investors can fully 
grasp the reasons and meanings behind our services, 
along with appreciating the immensity of the success we 
have achieved with socio-economically deprived sectors 
in the eastern zone of India. Together with our allies, we, at 
Jagaran, aim to expand on our achievements and develop 
an atmosphere that can allow us to realise our mission of 
creating a nation that can pride itself on socio-economic 
equity. 

VALUES

Transparency

Integrity

Determination

Innovation



WHAT
WE OFFER
As a microfinance institution based in India, Jagaran actively participates in industry-level initiatives led by the 
Microfinance Institutions Network (MFIN). We thoroughly abide by the MFIN code of conduct that promotes 
responsible lending operations. As we have been operating under a Joint Liability Group (JLG) model since inception, 
our products are also aligned with the requirements of cycle-based loans, as is typically the case regarding any JLG 
model. We offer our products to women in our areas of operation who form a part of each JLG. These products are 
designed to propel their income generation and consolidate their socio-economic and entrepreneurial capacities.

Our flagship product Saral was designed to support 
small business ventures. We offer it to entrepreneurs 
in the fields of agriculture, cottage industries, animal 
husbandry, women-led artisanal ventures or locally 
crucial services who seek working capital. For these 
purposes, this business financing loan scheme 
provides them with the necessary working capital in 
the range of ₹10,000 to ₹70,000. 

In addition to Saral, which can be easily applied for and 
obtained, we also offer special variant schemes of this 
product like Suvidha and Seva, which address seasonal 
outlays and specific exigencies. These case-specific 
loan schemes come to the much-needed aid of those 
involved in the agricultural sector or engage in small 
businesses.

Under Suvidha, our customers can meet the costs 
related to seasonal businesses. They can borrow up 
to ₹25,000 with this product with a loan tenure of 9 
months.

Saral

Suvidha

Ashray is a small loan scheme for long-time borrowers 
who seek financial aid to renovate or refurbish their 
homes. We offer up to ₹30,000 under this scheme. 
Ashray has proved advantageous for many of our clients, 
particularly in times of crises such as unprecedented 
natural disasters.

Ashray

A healthy and hygienic life for our borrowers is one of 
our foremost priorities as a microfinance firm targeting 
rural and semi-urban communities in the eastern zone 
of India. In this vein, we offer loans for WASH (Water 
Sanitation and Hygiene) under the scheme titled Seva. 
As part of this scheme, our loan amount ranges from 
₹10,000 up to ₹20,000, which each of these loans 
having a tenure of 1 year. We offer our clients the 
option of borrowing under Seva in case they need 
financial help while adopting clean energy and more 
environment-conscious business operations.

Seva



OUR 
JOURNEY SO FAR…
As of March 31, 2023, Jagaran is fully operational over the eastern zone of India, with 134 branches across 32 districts 
in 5 States and more than 700 employees who work tirelessly to make our endeavours successful. We have more 
than 46,000 active groups and the count of our active borrowers has crossed 1,45,000. 

While our nation’s microfinance industry has traversed the path of cautious, sustainable growth after the COVID-19 
era, Jagaran has kept pace with the pivotal shifts in the industry in addition to charting its own path of expansion 
across eastern India. Along with developing the capabilities of our team and management to fulfil the needs of 
our customer communities in rural and semi-urban sectors, we have established strong partnerships with entities 
belonging to the global investor community in a collaborative spirit. We firmly believe that these relationships will 
endure the test of time and help us in consolidating our presence and outreach in our areas of operation. In this 
context, we are delighted to see the ethos of partnership and the resoluteness among Jagaran’s stakeholders, who 
have worked tirelessly in this financial year to position Jagaran on the path of positive growth.

Our Jagaran team has always sought practical ways of successfully achieving our socio-economic aims. We are 
positive that our passionate employees will prevail over the threats of socio-economic upheavals and set new goals 
to achieve in the future.

As India’s microfinance sector is witnessing a grand rejuvenation, it is also being placed under timely regulations by 
the regulatory bodies at the helm of our nation’s economy. In keeping with these new regulatory developments and 
abiding the concomitant frameworks, Jagaran has implemented two crucial policies this year, in order to ensure the 
continued legitimacy and robustness of its operations.

As per the RBI’s Directions on the Regulatory Framework for Microfinance Loans (March 14, 2022), through which 
it has brought all Regulated Entities (REs) on a common platform, every RE must have in place a board-approved 
policy for the assessment of household income. In this light, Jagaran has adopted and implemented the methods 
proposed by the RBI to assess the household incomes of its customer communities across all its areas of operation. 

Jagaran’s evaluation of household income is based upon its understanding of the profile of each household with 
respect to various data, such as the number of earning members in a household, members’ primary and secondary 
sources of income, sector and nature of work, frequency of income, self-reported annual income from which the 
average monthly income is derived, and other sources of income that are also included in such calculations.

Moreover, as per the above mentioned Directions, Jagaran is also evaluating the household expenses of its customer 
communities. These evaluations, made on a self-declaration basis, cover the regular monthly expenses as well as the 
irregular expenses of each household.

Jagaran’s Operations Team is solely responsible for successfully implementing the household income assessment 
methods outlined by the RBI. Moreover, the Executive Committee of the Jagaran’s Board thoroughly reviews the 
implementation process to ensure streamlined operational workflows.

NEW
DEVELOPMENTS

Assessment of Household Income and Expenses



Considering the Micro Finance Institutions Network’s (MFIN) Guidance Note on the subject of pricing policy of Indian 
microfinance entities, and the RBI’s Directions regarding the powers of authority and oversight regarding the pricing 
framework, Jagaran computes the pricing of its loans at the end of every financial month and uses its calculations 
to improve the characteristics of the loans that are disbursed in the following month. Jagaran’s adherence to the 
above mentioned guidelines has proved immensely beneficial: it has allowed us to overcome the extant gaps and 
misalignments in the computation of pricing.

Delegation of the Review and 
Implementation of Pricing Policy

Cognisant of importance of creating new partnerships 
and strengthening old ones based on a consensus 
regarding the collective goals of the partnering 
entities, Jagaran aspires to foster an environment of 
cooperation that is supported by mutual faith and 
interactive synergies. Based on our overarching aims 
of poverty eradication and economic empowerment, 
we also envision a holistic growth where we never 
lose sight of our primary priority: the well-being of 
our current customers and the reach of our services 
to those who urgently require them. To this end, we 
have been encouraged by the guidelines set this year 
by the regulatory bodies like the Reserve Bank of India 
(RBI), Ministry of Company Affairs (MCA) as well as the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), which are 
looking to structure our nation’s economy in a growth-
based fashion. 

In this financial year, we have sought the most growth-
friendly synergies and expanded the scale of our 
operations across the eastern zone of India. All along 
our journey, we retained the belief in the salience of 
our goals and values in addition to keeping abreast of 
the requirements our clients as they themselves keep 
articulating them. In this context, going forward we plan 
to expand both our investor and customer networks 
and help many more financially disadvantaged people 
improve their incomes, entrepreneurial capacities and 
livelihoods.

We, at Jagaran, strongly believe that ‘access to clean water 
and sanitation for all’ is a basic necessity for a dignified 
life. Going forward, we want to further invigorate our 
commitment to clean water, sanitation and hygiene by 
streamlining our stakeholder communities’ access to 
WASH infrastructure.

Collaborate with More Partners

Spread our Network

Modify WASH Infrastructure

THE
ROAD AHEAD



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
This financial year, Jagaran has been committed to the consolidation of its presence in 
the spirit of sincere collaboration and cooperation. We have focused on sustainable, 
partnership-based growth, based on strict adherence to the new guidelines for microfinance 
entities set by the RBI and the Indian government. In turn, we have made our strategies 
more robust and have implemented procedures of investigating and eradicating financial 
irregularities or fraudulent activities. Finally, we are proud to have complied with all the RBI, 
SEBI, MCA guidelines regarding microfinance firms in this financial year. 

We are proud to state that due to the concerted efforts of Jagaran’s team and the vision of 
our excellent management and partners, we have received the following accreditations for 
this financial year that ended on March 31, 2023.

May’22

June’22

Aug’22

Nov’22

BANK LOAN 
FACILITIES

NCD Rating

MFI 
GRADING

CODE OF 
CONDUCT

Acuite Rating

ICRA Ratings

CRISIL

SMERA Ratings

BBB

BB+

mfR3

C2

(-) ve

(Stable)

May-23

June-23

Aug-23

Nov-23

Accreditations

Year Subject Rating Agency RATED for Jagaran Outlook Valid Till



CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
INITIATIVES

An integral aspect of Jagaran’s CSR projects concerns 
promoting employment schemes among women. 
To this end, we arrange many Skill Development 
Programmes for women in rural and semi-urban India, 
which should enable them to gain employment in 
cottage and handloom industries. For example, we 
frequently organise tailoring projects as part of our 
Skill Development Programmes across our areas of 
operation, offering important information about 
different fabrics and stitching techniques to those 
interested in the same.

Additionally, we assemble Financial Literacy and 
Inclusion Programmes in our Awareness Camps to 
spread information, especially among women, about 
the myriad of employment opportunities they can 
access. 

A large number of women living and/or working 
in rural and semi-urban India are critical to the 
robustness of its growing cottage and handloom 
sectors. Seeking more such enthusiastic participants in 
the country’s economy, we organise Entrepreneurship 
Development Programmes (EDP) for our customers as 
well as other women who are interested in undertaking 
such training. Benefitting from such workshops, our 
participants stand in a much improved position with 
respect to finding employment opportunities in 
handicraft and handloom enterprises. 

As a corporate entity, Jagaran Microfin Pvt. Ltd. in compliance with the prescriptions of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 has dedicated itself to a series of CSR 
initiatives. Since its establishment, Jagaran is a professionally managed microfinance institution that strives to achieve 
a healthy amalgam of social and financial sustainability through economic empowerment as well as employment 
generation and foster entrepreneurship amongst the economically backward sections of the population in India. 
We focus on the empowerment of women, trying to integrate them into the nation’s economy through financial 
inclusion in an efficient, equitable and transparent manner and to ensure their access to better livelihoods, health 
and education. In other words, we primarily work in the realms of education, health and skill-based employment 
opportunities to ensure the advancement of socio-economically disadvantaged communities.

Skill-Based Employment and 
Community Development

Entrepreneurship 
Development



The mark of a progressive group is the mettle of its 
leader. Able leaders set clear goals, embody reliability 
and inspire excellence among their group members. 
Most importantly, group leaders cultivate collaborative, 
cooperative and collective values in their groups. 
Considering our goal of partnership-based growth at 
all levels, we, at Jagaran, devote ourselves to promoting 
collective interactions and camaraderie within and 
across communities in order to build and strengthen 
our networks, which, in turn, support the well-being 
of disadvantaged communities. As a joint reliability 
microfinance company, we consistently arrange Group 
Leader Training Programmes for women to help them 
acquire leadership qualities and aid their respective 
communities. Furthermore, we hold felicitation 
ceremonies to salute those who display exceptional 
leadership, where they share their stories of struggle 
and success that stimulate leadership traits along with 
community values. 

In association with the Central Board for Worker’s 
Education, Government of India, Jagaran conducts 
Social Security Programmes through two-day 
Awareness Camps for women in the rural and semi-
urban informal labour sector across the eastern zone 
of India. These programmes exclusively involve the 
consideration of existing social-security plans and the 
concomitant options especially for women, with the 
ultimate goal of enabling Jagaran’s beneficiaries to 
become self-sufficient.

Jagaran’s main aim as a microfinance entity is the 
comprehensive development of our constituent 
communities. This is because the lack of affordable 
healthcare for medical emergencies proves to be a 
serious threat to the well-being of our clients. 

To combat this issue, we have vowed to improve 
the health of the communities in our focus and to 
hold regular ‘health and awareness’ drives to achieve 
the same. In fact, we have witnessed great success 
in providing basic healthcare, genuine diagnoses 
and medical advice to our clients over the years of 
our operation. For instance, we have been holding 
Health Check-up and Awareness Camps that involve 
discussions about the best measures to ensure that 
our clients known their own health conditions and 
problems. We also remain aware of the necessity of 
renewing our focus on non-mainstream sources of 
medicine. Thus, we organise homoeopathy clinics 

Group Leadership Training 
Programme

Social Security 
Programmes

Health
Education remains an unfulfilled dream for 
innumerable children in rural and semi-urban India in 
spite of the various literacy initiatives taken by national 
and international organisations alike. This situation 
can worsen due to various calamities that may render 
schools closed, effectively depriving these children of 
the education that is essential to their social-emotional 
and intellectual growth in their formative years. 
Children belonging to the underprivileged sectors 
of society may also be coerced into dropping out of 
school and may lose touch with academics, leading to 
alarming rises in illiteracy across rural and semi-urban 
India.

We, at Jagaran, firmly maintain that excellent 
education for all is the best way to cultivate equality 
of opportunities and ensure parity and more balanced 
educational/professional fields for urban and semi-
urban/rural children. Hence, we design inclusive 
learning options in the form of well-researched 
schemes and endeavours to improve learning 
possibilities in the educational facilities meant for our 
stakeholder communities.

EDUCATION

and for the benefit of our clients. We have also set 
up free homoeopathy dispensaries in all our areas of 
operation; these dispensaries have become popular 
among our client communities.



and motor skills, building a strong scaffolding to support their 
educational development.

Jagaran enables such holistic growth among socio-economically 
deprived children by organising pre-primary education projects. 
We help 20 pre-primary schools in 13 districts across rural and 
semi-urban West Bengal, Bihar and Jharkhand. In these schools, 
we encourage education via participation in a community 
learning process. This involves both children and their parents 
taking part in learning with the aid of early educational facilities. 
To add to regular planned lessons, we organise an array of 
hands-on activities and sports competitions so that children 
remain eager to come to school, enjoy what they learn and 
develop lasting friendships/group affinities.

The Education for All (EFA) drive by UNESCO foregrounds early childhood education and care for children aged 
between 3-6 years as the basis of a literate and compassionate world. Once available, good-quality pre-primary 
education can not only reduce formal school drop-outs but more importantly help children hone their cognitive 

While they may be able to access free early education, most 
students from underprivileged communities face the acute 
shortage of funds that hinders them from progressing towards 
their higher education. Consequently, they are excluded from 
jobs and livelihood opportunities that could facilitate their 
upward mobility. 

To alleviate such inequity, Jagaran provides financial support 
to meritorious but disadvantaged Madhyamik and Higher 
Secondary students across all areas where it is operational.

Pre-primary 
Education

Merit-based 
Scholarship Programme

Relief 
Work and Donation

Natural calamities, like economic watersheds, have the worst impacts on the bottom of the socio-economic pyramid. 
In the aftermath of a natural disaster, the need of the hour is to begin relief and rehabilitation drives and work with 
local populations to rebuild and rise, like a phoenix from the ashes of destruction.

In such calamitous times, we organise relief and recuperation projects directed at adversely-affected people in rural 
and semi-urban areas in eastern India. In the Relief Camps, we consequently establish, we provide much-needed aid 
to those whose dwellings and work environments may be destroyed during such disasters. 

Likewise, every year we do our bit to bolster those who are involved in offering mitigation with respect to natural 
calamities. We fulfil our moral and social duties by contributing to government-organised relief funds, thus 
supporting our country’s relief and rehabilitation efforts in the wake of calamities.
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CHAIRMAN’S 
ADDRESS

Dear Shareholders, Esteemed Colleagues and Partners,

I am delighted to introduce to you the 13th Annual Report of Jagaran Microfin Pvt. Ltd. for the 
financial year 2022-23. This year has been a year of opportunities well taken! I am delighted by 
the seeds of partnership-based growth that we have planted this year; they will grow into strong 
trees that bear innumerable fruits! 

We have not only been mindful of the needs of our client communities across eastern India but 
also have realised that we need to reach out to more people who need us, the only way to do 
the same would involve expanding our reach. We have thus decided that help from the global 
investor community is crucial to Jagaran’s self-consolidation over the coming years. Therefore, we 
have established robust relationships with five partners in a spirit of optimistic, growth-oriented 
collaboration. At the same time, we have never shifted our focus from our customer communities 
who are reliant on our organisation as much as we are dependent on them. 

In FY 2022-23, we have made planned investments on the skill development, education and 
health of our current customers in addition to expanding our operational reach across eastern 
India. Moreover, in a milieu that fosters cooperation among the various stakeholders of Jagaran, 
we have created alliances that will endure the toughest of times and herald the brightest of days.

As a result, for Jagaran this year has been enriched with partnerships, synergies and new 
opportunities for growth. Along with the many products and services we have provided this year, 
we have also organised many Entrepreneurship Development Programmes, Group Leadership 
Training Programmes, Social Security Programmes, and Health Check-up and Awareness Camps 
to impart knowledge about health and hygiene. 

We are also helping underprivileged children in pre-primary schools across the states where we 
operate. Furthermore, we have provided financial support to meritorious students who can use 
the same to avail of the best higher educational opportunities and walk the path of growth and 
improvement themselves. 

In summary, FY 2022-23 has made us proud of ourselves. It has made us dream of a better future, 
for Jagaran, its benefactors, its beneficiaries, and the world at large. We are confident that our 
environment of cooperation, spirit of collaboration, and well-planned outlook of synergy-based 
growth will help us prosper as a microfinance organisation in the future.

Best Regards,
Dipankar Chatterji

Jagaran Annual Report 22-2313



MD’S 
MESSAGE

While 2022 was a year of comebacks, 2023 has been a year of incremental improvement. We have 
built on the excellent work we did last year, converting the trust that our stakeholders have placed 
in us into a spirit that foregrounds the necessity for consolidation and expansion. Helped by our 
devoted employees, management, stakeholders and new partners, we have created positive 
networks that will push us towards an era of collaborative development.

With the Indian government’s support, the aid of our partners and the determination of our 
customer communities, we have been able to propel the socio-economic prosperity of rural 
and semi-urban communities across the eastern zone of India. To summarise, we have gained 
amazing experiences in our quest to achieve growth and prosperity in a collaborative setting and 
in a cooperative spirit. Our journey this year has made us grow and gain more experience in our 
industry. Thus, I want to congratulate all of Jagaran’s staff for their effort, rigour and indomitable 
spirit; together, we are dedicated to Jagaran’s consolidation and expansion. Again, I express my 
gratitude to our partners as well as our stakeholders for their undaunted support towards us. 
Going forward, I am certain that Jagaran will keep shining brightly as a beacon of success in 
India’s microfinance sector. 

Best Regards,
Sourav Ghosh
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CEO’S 
MESSAGE

I am elated to state that this financial year has given us everything that we, at Jagaran, have 
dreamed of since our inception! Indeed, today we are in an era of renewal, of unbridled growth, of 
the expansion of our horizons as a microfinance firm that operates across eastern India. This year, 
our focus on collaborative growth and improved reach has made us shift the tone and pace of our 
operations; we have simultaneously focused on our benefactors and our beneficiaries, in order to 
chart the path of sustainable partnership-based consolidation as a microfinance organisation. In 
turn, we can proudly claim that Jagaran’s fortunes have brightened and its fortitude has improved 
manifold! 

Going forward, Jagaran will not veer from its focus: the improvement of the socio-economic well-
being of rural and semi-urban India. In fact, we believe that our growth and the expansion of our 
presence are crucial to the socio-economic improvement of our target communities. Thus, in the 
coming years we pledge to work with all our stakeholders and partners so that we can collectively 
build on the successes of Jagaran in the past year. 

Best Regards,
Jaydeep Ghosh
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BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

A Chartered Accountant with more than five decades of field experience, 
Mr. Chatterji is currently a Senior Partner with L.B. Jha and Co. Previously, 
he has been the President (Eastern Region) of the Indo-American Chamber 
of Commerce and also the Chairman (Eastern Region) of the Confederation 
of Indian Industry (CII). Moreover, he has been part of the Board of Directors 
of four nationalised banks, a public sector mutual fund and various expert 
committees appointed by the Reserve Bank of India, the Government of India 
and various State Governments.

Having served as Ex-Chairman and Managing Director of National Mineral 
Development Corporation Limited and Hindustan Copper Limited, Mr. Som is a 
corporate chief who has utilised his experience in various organisations and has 
been instrumental in the revival of the two public sector behemoths mentioned 
above. In addition, Mr. Som has played the role of a Chairman-cum-Managing 
Director for Hindustan Copper Limited as well as National Mineral Development 
Corporation Limited. He was a member of the India- Russia Joint CEO’s Forum 
and India-South Africa Joint CEO’s Forum. Mr. Som is now the Non-executive 
Chairman of BBCL and a director on the boards of a number of companies. He is 
also a member of an international jury aimed at the selection of best companies 
in various fields within the metals and mining sector. He has also authored an 
important book on corporate turnarounds.

Mr. Dipankar Chatterji

Mr. Rana Som
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Mr. Subrata Gupta was the Managing Director of NABFINS Limited. He has 
been associated with diverse projects in the area of rural development 
implemented by NABARD. He has mainly worked in the fields of project finance, 
rural infrastructure, microfinance, financial inclusion and banking technology, 
information technology, and in the internal training system of NABARD as a 
faculty member. He has worked as a consultant with NABCONS in the area of 
food processing and agri-infrastructure. Presently, he is working as a consultant 
to NABARD as an advisor in the Cloud-based CBS Project for rural co-operative 
banks. He is also a director in the Board of NABSAMRUDDHI Financial Services 
Limited. 

In the BFSI sector, Mr. Ghosh has gathered more than two decades of invaluable 
experience. Before joining Jagaran, he has served as Zonal Manager (Eastern 
India) for Agency Development in ICICI Prudential Life Insurance, and he has also 
completed a stint with Axis Bank, in charge of retail banking in its Eastern Zone. 
Moreover, since the inception of Jagaran till December 2015, he has worked as 
our COO, before re-commencing this role for a 2nd term from August 2018. 

After concluding his Post Graduate Diploma in Management (Marketing) from 
the Institute of Management Technology, Ghaziabad, Mr. Ghosh has served 
as the Leisure Markets – Chief Executive Officer of OYO Business. In this role, 
he has supervised the Business Development, Sales and Operations of OYO 
Business. Further, he has also worked as a Senior Account Manager for Snapdeal, 
overseeing its Sales and Marketing department and acting as a Key Account 
Manager in Electronics.

Mr. Subrata Gupta

Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh

Mr. Sourav Ghosh
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A Master of Science, Economics and International Financial Economics from 
the University of Warwick with immense experience in academic projects, Ms. 
Majumder is now an NSE-certified Capital Market professional. She completed 
her Master’s degree in Economics from Calcutta University in India and has 
also served as a Facilitator of the Department of Social Work & National Service 
Scheme (NSS) (from 2010 to 2013). Ms. Majumder is a young and impassioned 
professional, who uses her educational background and her experience of 
working with a non-profit organisation (dealing with underprivileged children) 
to help Jagaran’s operations bear the desired results.

Mr. Sandip Das was enrolled as a member of the ICAI in 1999. He completed 
his articleship from L. B. Jha and Co., Chartered Accountants. He was employed 
with J. J. Automotive Limited from 1999 to 2000. He served as a paid assistant 
with M. Chatterjee & Co., Chartered Accountants, and he served as a partner with 
Mukhopadhyay Das & Co., Chartered Accountants, from 2001 to 2003 and from 
2003 to 2005, respectively. Since August 2005, he is practising in his individual 
capacity as part of the firm, named Sandip Das & Associates.

Ms. Aatreyee Majumder

Mr. Sandip Das
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SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT GOALS
As a growing microfinance entity, Jagaran is deeply concerned with the safe, sound and holistic 
development of our planet. Without a global goal to maintain the sustainability of global development, 
our project of empowering the economically disadvantaged would falter. Fortunately, the United Nations 
General Assembly (UNGA) has showed us the way to a prosperous future of the world and its people. 

In 2015, the UNGA adopted the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development as part of its Post-2015 
Development Agenda. The 2030 Agenda espoused 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), aimed 
at holistic and actionable plans that would propel sustainable development, ensuring a just and 
flourishing future for the entire world by eradicating the existing inequities and obstacles that deter us 
from realizing this goal. 

Energised by the UNGA’s clarion call, we at Jagaran have wholeheartedly made it our priority to abide 
the SDGs. Indeed, we have integrated our organisational plans with the elaborate schemes outlined 
by the UNGA to realize the SDGs by 2030. Going further, we have integrated these goals with our own 
efforts of advising and helping those from rural and semi-urban communities, especially women, gain 
financial independence, entrepreneurial skills, health advice and educational support. As we expand 
our areas of operation, we promise to make our ambitions fully align with SGDs by adapting them to our 
following areas of impact: 

•	 Gender equality, through gender awareness programmes, entrepreneurial development drives and 
social security programmes curated for women, aimed at empowering them towards self-sufficient 
and prosperous livelihoods.

•	 Reduced inequality, through skill development, financial literacy and inclusion and leadership training 
programmes designed for rural and semi-urban populations, in addition to financial and educational 
support to meritorious but economically disadvantaged students in our operational locations.

•	 Economic growth, through the provision of decent work opportunities and excellent financial advice/
schemes, using which our customers can achieve financial well-being.

•	 Clean water and sanitation, as part of our WASH goals under Seva, through which our clients can avail 
of financial help while adopting clean energy and undertake more environment-friendly business 
operations.

Jagaran is traversing the path of sustainability adumbrated by the United Nations. To this end, we plan to 
add new partners to our existing pool of partners who will enhance our workforce and our operational 
abilities in the future, while never losing sight of the global development goals that are crucial for our 
survival and well-being. Together, we shall tread new horizons and work towards ushering in a brighter 
future for our people and our world.
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AGM NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the 13th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Jagaran Microfin Private Limited 

(the ‘Company’) will be held on Monday, September 25, 2023 at 11:00 hours at the registered office of the company 

situated at 5th Floor, 38 Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkata – 700001 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To adopt the audited Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023

	 To receive, consider and adopt the audited Standalone Financial Statements of the company together with the 

report of the Auditors’ and Board of Directors Report thereon for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023.

	 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an ordinary 

resolution –

	 “RESOLVED THAT the audited Standalone Financial Statements comprising Statement of Profit & Loss of the 

company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, the Balance Sheet as at that date and Cash Flow Statement 

financial year ended on March 31, 2023 together with the Notes as annexed thereto and the Auditors’ Report dated 

May 12, 2023 and the Board of Directors’ Report thereon, as circulated to the shareholders of the company and 

submitted to this meeting, be and the same are hereby received and adopted.”

2.	 To re-appoint a director

	 To re-appoint a director in place of Mr Sandip Das (DIN – 09345602), who retires by rotation in terms of section 

152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

	 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an ordinary 

resolution –

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

approval of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Sandip Das (DIN 

– 09345602), as a Director to the extent that he is required to retire by rotation.”

			   By order of the Board

			   For Jagaran Microfin Private Limited

			   Tanusree Ghosh

			   Company Secretary
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NOTES :

	 A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and a 

proxy not be a member of the company. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the company at its 

Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

	A body corporate being a member shall be deemed to be personally present at the meeting if represented in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013. The representative so appointed, shall have the right to 

appoint a proxy.

	Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a copy of its board resolution/

authorisation, etc., authorising their representative to attend the AGM on its behalf. 

	The Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the special 

businesses set out in the Notice are annexed.

	Members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested to submit the attendance slips duly filled in for 

attending the meeting. Members are requested to write their folio number in the attendance slip for attending the 

meeting.

	At the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Mr. Sandip Das (DIN – 09345602), retire by rotation and being eligible, 

offer himsef for re-appointment.

	Pursuant to section 20(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 35 of the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 

2014, as amended, Companies are permitted to send official documents to their shareholders electronically.

	Members are requested to kindly notify the Company of any changes in their addresses/email address so as to 

enable the Company to address future communication to their correct addresses.
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BOARD REPORT TO MEMBERS
For the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the 13th Board Report along with the audited financial statement of your 
Company, registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) dated 27th September, 2013, under the provisions of the NBFC 
(Reserve Bank of India) Directions, 1998, as a Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC-MFI vide Registration No. B.05.00998.

In the Financial year 2022-23, our return to a state of balance was arduous but rewarding. Post the COVID-19 pandemic, 
your Company, reinforced by more than a decade of experience, created resilient mechanisms of sustenance as well as new 
opportunities of revival to bolster all those who consider it a beacon of hope and a harbinger of change. Indeed, this Financial 
Year your Company witnessed the dawn of a new era marked by increased demand, increasingly digitalised operations, 
technology-aware stakeholders and an optimistic economy. It accrued profits without compromising on the material and 
social well-being of our stakeholders.

Over the years, our nation’s microfinance sector has evolved and become more systematic through the regulatory framework 
issued by the RBI and the Industry Code of Conduct formulated by the SROs. Moreover, the sector’s changing dynamics (once 
dominated by NBFC-MFIs, it is currently witnessing other institutions that are progressively growing in terms of market 
share) have encouraged the development of the Code for Responsible Lending, a voluntary code for all lenders operating 
in the microfinance sector. In March 2022, the Reserve Bank of India issued a New Regulatory Framework for Microfinance 
Loans, which provides a level playing field to all lenders operating in this sector by outlining a common set of regulations for 
them. Undoubtedly, this framework will sustain the growth trajectory of MFIs in the coming years.

Your Company successfully implemented the New Regulatory Framework in the field by adopting the relevant policies 
pertaining to the pricing of loans and other charges, training its members regarding the accurate income assessment of 
households, etc. It also successfully adopted the RBI Scale Based Regulation which covers the governance standards and 
prudential regulations of microfinance entities.  

Moreover, your Company expanded its outreach to acquire new customers, develop new funding relationships besides 
catering to increased credit requirements precipitated by the gradual revival of the semi-urban and rural economies of 
Eastern India. On that note, your Company acknowledges and offers its deepest gratitude to its employees who have devoted 
their time, effort, blood and sweat to ensure that, your Company comes out stronger, more prepared and more stable. Your 
Company also hopes and expects to have the support and goodwill of its stakeholders so that it can further enhance its 
performance in the future.   
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1.	 FINANCIAL RESULTS OF YOUR COMPANY
	 Your Board of Directors is continuously searching and outlining new avenues for future growth of your Company.

	 The audited financial statement for the Financial Year 2022-23 has been prepared in accordance with IND AS 109.

	 Financial Results of your Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 are summarized as below:

	 Financial Results
	 (₹in lakhs)

Particulars
Financial Year 

(2022-23)
Financial Year 

(2021-22)
Profit before Tax Depreciation & Provision 403.92 550.87
Less: Depreciation 47.16 36.87

Provision as per RBI norms - -
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 356.76 514
Less: Provision for Taxation - -

Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax 60.95 149.35

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 295.81 364.65
Other Comprehensive Income adjustments (4.88) 1.50
Profit/(Loss) transferred to Reserve 290.93 366.15
Profit Brought forward 2480.84 2187.62
Amount available for Appropriation 2771.77 2553.77
Appropriations - -
Transfer to Statutory Reserve (59.16) (72.93)
Dividend Paid - -
Corporate Dividend Tax - -
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 2712.61 2480.84
Liabilities and Equity
Financial Liabilities - -
Payables 7.39 14.71
Debt Securities 1929.31 4304.74
Borrowings 30015.69 23992.03
Subordinated Debt 500.42 500.42
Other Financial Liabilities 1725.49 219.09
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities(Net) - -
Provisions 119.11 108.21
Other Non-financial liabilities 56.78 34.76
Equity
Equity Share Capital 5129.62 4829.62
Other Equity 5132.52 4541.59
Total Liabilities and Equity 44,616.33 38,545.17
Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 2133.33 3055.61
Bank balances other than Cash/Cash equivalents 4566.15 4300.42
Trade Receivables 68.57 -
Loans 33887.69 29725.02
Other Financial Assets 2815.29 289.82
Non-Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets(Net) 217.36 155.53
Deferred Tax Assets(Net) 793.46 852.53
Property, Plant and Equipment 38.51 66.20
Other intangible Assets 22.78 25.79
Other Non-financial Assets 73.19 74.25
Total Assets 44,616.33 38,545.17



Jagaran Annual Report 22-2325

2.	 REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Particulars
Financial Year

(2022-23)
Financial Year

(2021-22)

Number of branches 134 135

Number of borrowers 1,45,959 1,46,546

Number of employees 720 787

Number of states 5 5

Number of districts 32 33

Number of villages 3910 3815

Amount disbursed (lakhs) 34056.10 20844

Gross Portfolio outstanding ( lakhs) 34131.96 30503.07

3.	 DIVIDEND
	 The Board of Directors of your Company after considering the relevant circumstances comprehensively have decided 

that it would be prudent not to recommend any dividend for the Financial Year 2022-23.

4.	 AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO STATUTORY RESERVE
	 During the year under review your Company have incurred profit and accordingly amount of ₹59.16 lakhs was 

transferred to the Statutory Reserve as required (20% of Profit after tax) under Section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934.

5.	 CAPITAL ADEQUACY
	 Your Company maintained a healthy Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) of 23.47%, as accounted on 31st March, 2023. 

The minimum capital adequacy requirement by RBI is 15%.

6.	 RESOURCE MOBILISATION
	 Your Company’s funding base is well-diversified with a good mix of private banks, public sector banks, financial 

institutions (FIs) and NBFCs. As on 31st March, 2023, your Company has funding relationships with 27 lenders. Its 
funding profile comprises of bank loans with an exposure of 55.42%, FIs/NBFCs with an exposure of 37.21%, debentures 
with an exposure of 5.85%, & subordinated debt with an exposure of 1.52%.

	 In the Financial Year 2022-23, your Company raised ₹26,100 lakhs, 30% higher than what it was in the Financial Year 
2021-22. It added 6 new lenders.

	 Your Company also opted for an undrawn sanction of ₹8,700 lakhs that, when disbursed in the current fiscal, will ensure 
its further growth.

	 Further, your Company also started new relationship pertaining to BC & Co-lending. Your Company has received a 
Co-lending sanction of ₹4,800 Lakhs from Ananya Finance out of which ₹2,400 Lakhs was received in the Financial 
Year 2022-23 (a further sanction of ₹2,400 Lakhs has been received in the current Financial Year). Your Company also 
received a draft sanction of co-lending from SBI to the tune of ₹10,000 Lakhs, extendable up to ₹50,000 Lakhs.

	 Additionally, Your Company ventured into the BC business wherein it received a sanction of ₹2,500 lakhs from CSB Bank, 
a sanction of ₹3,000 lakhs from Jana Small Finance Bank and a sanction of ₹1,000 lakhs from Avanti. Your Company’s 
outstanding of total BC business was ₹1,016 lakhs as on 31st March, 2023. Hence, your Company has a huge potential 
to expand the BC business in this fiscal year. In the future it plans to take these relationships forward by setting even 
greater goals.

7.	 REGULATORY AUTHORITIES
	 Your Company is governed by the rules and regulations set by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (SEBI) and Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) as applicable. Your Company continues to follow 
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and comply with the same. Moreover, being a member of Microfinance Institution Network (MFIN), your Company 
follows and complies with the Code of Conduct, standards and rules prescribed by the self-regulatory organisation 
(SRO) from time to time.

8.	 CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
	 There has been no change in the nature of business of your Company in the Financial Year 2022-23. Your Company is 

continuing with its primary goal of lending to women in semi-urban and rural areas as per the Joint Liability Group 
(JLG) model only.

9.	 CAPITAL INFUSION
	 The Board of Directors of your Company allotted 30,00,000 number of equity shares on preferential basis at the face 

value of ₹10.00 with a premium of ₹10.00 on each share based on valuation report as against the total application 
money received, to the existing members of your Company namely as mentioned in the table below:

Name of members Number of equity shares allotted (Nos) Amount Received (₹)

Ms. Abira Majumder 10,00,000 2,00,00,000

Ms. Aatreyee Majumder 10,00,000 2,00,00,000

Mr. Adipta Majumder 10,00,000 2,00,00,000

Total 30,00,000 6,00,00,000

10.	 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
YOUR COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT.

	 In the period mentioned above, no material changes in the nature of your Company’s business or commitments have 
taken place which may have affected its financial position.

11.	 GRADING AND CREDIT RATING
	 Your Company’s financial prudence and discipline is reflected in the credit ratings attributed to your Company for the 

financial year that ended on 31st March, 2023 by rating agencies. The report on the rating and grading is summarised in 
the table below:

	 Grading Information

Sl No. Category Grading agency Grading Scale

1. Grading CRISIL mfR3

	 Rating Information

Sl No.  Category Rating agency Rating Scale Degree/Outlook

2. Rating Acuite BBB (-)/Negative

Rating ICRA BB (+)/Stable

	 COCA Assessment

Sl No.  Category Grading agency CoCA Grade

3. Code of Conduct Assessment SMERA C2
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12.	 CAPITAL STRUCTURE: RAISING OF FUNDS/ INFUSION OF EQUITY CAPITAL
	 The capital structure of your company is given under:

	 Equity

Authorized Share Capital Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

₹75,00,00,000.00 ₹51,29,62,000.00

	 Equity: Fresh Equity Shares were issued to the existing shareholders (promoter) during the Financial Year 2022-23 
under review.

	 Non-Convertible debenture: No fresh NCDs were issued during the Financial Year 2022-23 under review.

13.	 DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE OF YOUR COMPANY
	 Your Company did not initiate any subsidiary, associate and joint venture during the period under review.

14.	 PUBLIC DEPOSITS
	 Your Company is a non-deposit NBFC-MFI; it has not received or accepted any deposit and has maintained its non-

acceptance of public deposits as part of its NBFC status. Its financials do not contain any figures that come under the 
definition of deposits as specified under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. As per Non-Banking Finance Companies 
RBI Directions, 1998, the Board of Directors hereby report that, your Company did not accept any public deposits 
during the year under review and did not have any outstanding public deposits at the end of the same.

15.	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
	 Your Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company classified as NBFC-MFI and its principal business is to provide small 

ticket loans to the economically disadvantaged sections of society, mainly women from rural and semi-urban areas. 
Hence, Section 186 is not applicable to your Company. Details of loans and investments covered under the provisions 
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in the Notes to the Financial Statements. In summary, your 
Company has not provided any guarantee under Section 186.

16.	 CHANGES IN THE COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	 	 Mr. Subrata Gupta has been appointed as an Independent Director of your company, to hold office for a term of 

five consecutive year commencing from 11th April, 2022 to 10th April, 2027.

	 	 Mr. Sandip Das has been appointed as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of your Company with effect 
from 11th April, 2022.

	 	 Ms. Shanta Ghosh has resigned from the position of Independent Director of your Company’s Board of Directors 
and Committee/s with effect from 09th February, 2023.

17.	 DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

	 Mr. Sandip Das, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director retired by rotation in terms of Section 152 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and, being eligible for the post, offered himself for re-appointment as a Director of your Company. 
A declaration under Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 was received stating that he was not disqualified from 
the appointment as the Director.

	 During the year under review, Mr. Tirtha Pratim Sahu resigned from the position of Chief Financial Officer with effect 
from 01st March, 2023 and Mr. Arun Kumar Gupta was appointed as a Chief Financial Officer (KMP) of your Company 
with effect from 01st March, 2023.

	 During the year under review, Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh, CEO & Whole-Time Director, Mr. Arun Kumar Gupta, Chief Financial 
Officer and Ms. Tanusree Ghosh, Company Secretary, constituted the Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of your Company 
under the Companies Act, 2013.



Jagaran Annual Report 22-23 28

18.	 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
	 The definition of ‘Independence’ of Directors is derived from Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,

	 2013. Based on the confirmation / disclosures received from the Directors and upon evaluation of the Relationships 
disclosed, the following Non-Executive Directors were deemed Independent in terms of Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013:

	 a)	 Mr. Dipankar Chatterji
	 b)	 Mr. Rana Som
	 c)	 Mr. Subrata Gupta

	 In compliance with the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has received declarations 
from all the Independent Directors of your Company confirming that they met the criteria of independence prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI 
LODR Regulations’). Further, there was no change in the circumstances which may have affected their status as 
Independent Directors during the year under review.

19.	 DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION & NOMINATION CRITERIA FOR DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL

	 The Board has, on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in compliance with the 
Companies Act, 2013, framed a Nomination and Remuneration criteria for the selection, evaluation and appointment 
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, fixing their remuneration after including criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and related matters, as provided under the 
said act. Both Nomination and Remuneration are critical parts of the Corporate Governance of your Company.

	 A comprehensive overview of the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and other details are 
also provided in the section pertaining to Corporate Governance, which is a part of this report.

	 The Remuneration paid to Whole-time Directors (includes 2 Whole-time Directors and the Managing Director) during 
the year under review was ₹112.98 lakhs.

	 Importantly, the Non-Executive and Independent Directors do not have any pecuniary relationship with your Company.  
They do not receive any remuneration except the applicable Sitting fee(s).

	 The total amount of Sitting Fees paid in Financial Year 2022-23 was ₹18.95 lakhs (this amount included the charges for 
the Meetings of the Board of Directors and the Committee of Directors of the Company).

20.	 COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION 
AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES.

	 Here, the current policy of your Company encourages an appropriate mix of Executive and Independent Directors to 
maintain the independence of the Board and separate its functions of governance and management. As of 31st March, 
2023, the Board consists of seven (7) members: three (3) Executive Directors, three (3) Independent Directors and one 
(1) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. The Chairman of your Company is an Independent Director, in terms of 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Moreover, the Board periodically evaluates the need for change in 
its composition and size.

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee formulates the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director. It recommends to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees. The recommendation of the committee is forwarded to the Board for its approval.

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee decides the remuneration of Executive Directors on the basis of 
following criteria:

	 a.	 The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of 
the quality required to run your Company successfully;

	 b.	 The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the appropriate performance benchmarks.
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21.	 CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
	 During the year under review, your Company entered into related party transactions with GTFS Multi Services Limited 

(its holding Company) on an arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of its business through a rental agreement. 
All transactions with Related Parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) during the year under review were 
entered into in the ordinary course of the Company’s business and at an arm’s length pricing basis; they did not attract 
the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the transactions with related parties were 
placed before the Audit Committee from time to time.

22.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	 (i)	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ITS FRAMEWORK
		  Your Company strives to adopt and adhere to the highest standards of Corporate Governance principles and the 

best related practices. With this objective, your Company has put in place various policies, systems and processes 
to achieve transparency, high levels of business ethics and compliance with applicable laws. The effective Role of 
the Board is central to effectual corporate governance. Your Company has a Board with independent members who 
have extensive experience in the field of economics and social development. It has formed various Committees in 
tune with its emphasis on governance. The Board and other Committees of the Board ensure the high standards of 
transparency and accountability regarding all of your Company’s activities to its customers, employees, regulators, 
investors, vendors and society at large. Further, your Company’s best management practices and a high level of 
integrity in decision-making are followed to ensure the long-term creation of value for all the stakeholders. Your 
Company ensures the implementation of good corporate governance on which its management decisions are 
based. All the functions of your Company are discharged in a professionally sound, competent and transparent 
manner.

		  The driving principle that provides direction to our corporate governance framework is encapsulated in the 
diagram below:

Corporate Governance Framework

Vision
Ensuring access to better 
livelihood, health and education 
in an efficient, equitable and 
transparent manner.

Mission
To provide financial services that 
are suitable for the needs of the 
rural population while ensuring 
long-term financial viability and 
sustainability. 

Strategy
The process includes establishing 
the sequence in which those 
goals should be realised so that 
the organisation can reach its 
stated vision.

Objectives
To ultimately give 
socio-economically disadvantaged 
people an opportunity to become 
self-sufficient.

Corporate
Governance

Management, 
Supervisory Board, 
Committees

Values & Ethics

Policies & Regulatory 
Framework

Monitoring &  
Internal Control

Transparency

Risk, Performance 
Management

Accountability
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	 (ii)	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
		  The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company/business policy and strategy apart from 

other Board businesses. The notice of Board meetings is duly given to all the Directors. The Agendas for the Board 
and Committee meetings include detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the meetings so that the Directors 
can, in turn, take informed decisions.

		  a)	 Composition, Category of the Board of Directors

			   As of 31st March, 2023, the Board of your Company consisted of seven (7) Directors (including a Woman 
Director), of which three were Independent Directors, one was a Non-Executive Director and three (3) were 
Executive Directors (including the Managing Director).

			   The composition of the Board conforms to the mandates of the Companies Act, 2013. The composition of the 
Board, the other directorships of the Board members, the number of Board Meetings held in the attendance 
of the Directors during the Financial Year 2022-23, along with the details of the Committees of the Board, their 
membership and their Terms of Reference, are presented below:

Sl 
No.

Name of Director Category
No. of Directorship in other Companies 

(as on 31st March,2023)

1 Mr. Dipankar Chatterji Independent Director 8

2 Mr. Rana Som Independent Director 6

3 Mr Subrata Gupta Independent Director 1

4 Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh Whole-time Director NIL

5 Mr. Sourav Ghosh Managing Director NIL

6 Ms. Aatreyee Majumder Whole-time Director NIL

7 Mr. Sandip Das Non-Executive Director 2

		  b)	 Your Directors

			   Dipankar Chatterji

			   Dipankar Chatterji, DIN: 00031256, was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of Jagaran 
effective from 27th June, 2016. Mr. Chatterji is a renowned Chartered Accountant with more than five decades 
of field experience and is currently a Senior Partner with L. B. Jha and Co. Previously, Mr. Chatterji has been 
the president (Eastern Region) of the Indo-American Chamber of Commerce and also the Chairman (Eastern 
Region) of the Confederation of Indian Industry (CII). Moreover, he has been part of the Board of Directors 
of four nationalised banks, a public sector mutual fund and various expert committees appointed by the 
Reserve Bank of India, the Government of India and various State Governments.

			   Rana Som
			   Rana Som, DIN: 00352904, was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of Jagaran effective 

from 28th September, 2021. Mr. Som was the Ex-Chairman and Managing Director of National Mineral 
Development Corporation Limited and Hindustan Copper Limited. He is a corporate leader who has used his 
expertise in working for different organizations to script the turn-around of two public sector giants. He was 
the architect of Hindustan Copper Limited revival and was instrumental in the massive diversification and 
growth of National Mineral Development Corporation Limited (NMDC). Mr. Som was the CMD of NMDC and 
also was a member of the India- Russia Joint CEO’s Forum and India- South Africa Joint CEO’s Forum. Mr. Som 
is now the Non-executive Chairman of BBCL and a director on the boards of a number of companies. He is also 
a member of an international jury aimed at the selection of best companies in various fields within the metals 
and mining sector. He has also authored an important book on corporate turnarounds.

			   Subrata Gupta
			   Subrata Gupta, DIN: 06833844, was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of Jagaran effective 
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from 11th April, 2022. Mr. Gupta was the Managing Director of NABFINS Limited. He has been associated 
with diverse projects in the area of rural development implemented by NABARD. He has mainly worked in 
the fields of project finance, rural infrastructure, microfinance, financial inclusion and banking technology, 
Information Technology, and in the internal training system of NABARD as a faculty member. Presently, he is 
working as a consultant to NABCONS in the area of Food Processing and Agri-infrastructure.

			   Jaydeep Ghosh
			   Jaydeep Ghosh, DIN: 07475085, was appointed as a Whole-time Director on the Board of Jagaran effective 

from 14th November, 2019. Mr. Ghosh has over two decades of experience in the BFSI sector. Before taking 
charge as the CEO for a second term from August, 2018, he has also served as the COO at Jagaran since 
its inception until December 2015. His previous employers were ICICI Prudential Life Insurance and Axis 
Bank. Before joining Jagaran, he was the Zonal Manager (Eastern India) for Agency Development with ICICI 
Prudential Life Insurance. At Axis Bank, he was in charge of retail banking in the Eastern Zone of India.

			   Sourav Ghosh
			   Sourav Ghosh, DIN: 08154243, was appointed as a Managing Director on the Board of Jagaran effective from 8th 

March, 2019. Mr. Ghosh completed his Post Graduate Diploma in Management (Marketing) from the Institute of 
Management Technology, Ghaziabad. He has acted as the Leisure Markets-Chief Executive Officer in OYO Business, 
managing Business Development, Sales and Operations. He has also worked as the Senior Account Manager 
(handling Sales and Marketing) and as the Key Account Manager (looking after Electronics) at Snapdeal.

			   Aatreyee Majumder
			   Aatreyee Majumder, DIN: 08363766, was appointed as a Whole-Time Director on the Board of Jagaran effective 

from 14th November, 2019. Ms. Majumder completed her MS (Master of Science) degree in Economics and 
International Financial Economics at the University of Warwick. She also earned a Post Graduate degree in 
Economics from the University of Calcutta before heading to Warwick to complete a more specialised training. 
Ms. Majumder has committed herself to several academic projects and is an NSE-certified Capital Market 
professional. From 2010 to 2013, she has also served as the facilitator for the Department of Social Work & 
National Service Scheme (NSS). She is a young, energetic and dedicated professional whose academic expertise 
and experience of working for various social projects makes her a very reliable and efficient member of the team.

			   Sandip Das
			   Sandip Das, DIN: 09345602, was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of Jagaran effective 

from 11th April, 2022. Mr. Das was enrolled as a member of the ICAI in 1999. He completed his articleship 
from L. B. Jha and Co., Chartered Accountants. He was employed with J. J. Automotive Limited from 1999 
to 2000. He served as a paid assistant with M. Chatterjee & Co., Chartered Accountants, and he served as a 
partner with Mukhopadhyay Das & Co., Chartered Accountants, from 2001 to 2003 and from 2003 to 2005, 
respectively. Since August 2005, he is practising in his individual capacity as part of the firm named, Sandip 
Das & Associates.

		  c)	 Number of meetings and attendance of the Board of Directors
			   The Board met six (6) times in Financial Year 2022-23. The maximum interval between any two meetings did 

not exceed 120 days.

Sl. No. Date of Board Meeting Place of Meeting No. of Members attended the Board Meeting

1. 11.04.2022 Kolkata 8 out of 8

2. 21.05.2022 Kolkata 7 out of 8

3. 12.08.2022 Kolkata 7 out of 8

4. 17.08.2022 Kolkata 7 out of 8

5. 11.11.2022 Kolkata 7 out of 8

6. 13.02.2023 Kolkata 7 out of 7
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	 (iii)	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

		  The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director. In Financial Year 2022-23, the Audit Committee 
met Five (5) times. The composition of the Audit Committee and its brief terms of reference are presented below:

Sl 
No.

Date of Meeting Place of Meeting
No. of Members 

attended the Meeting
Members of the 

Committee

1. 11.04.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 3

Mr. Rana Som 
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji 
Mr. Sandip Das

2. 21.05.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

3. 12.08.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

4. 11.11.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

5. 13.02.2023 Kolkata 3 out of 3

		  Brief Terms of Reference of Audit Committee:

		  a)	 To review the Financial Reporting, ensuring the correctness & suitability of Financial Statements;

		  b)	 To review the recommendation of Internal and External Auditors, the scope of their Audits and Audit reports 
to the Board;

		  c)	 To review the functioning of the whistle-blower mechanism;

		  d)	 To review and scrutinise, along with the Company’s management, the periodic financial statements/results 
before their submission to the Board, focusing primarily on:

			   	 matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement (to be included in the Board’s 
report in terms of Clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013);

			   	 any changes in accounting policies and practices;

			   	 any related party transaction;

			   	 the adequacy of internal audit function;

		  e)	 To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matter/s involving suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature, and to report the matter/s to 
the Board;

		  f )	 To ensure that an Information System Audit of the internal systems and processes is conducted on a yearly 
basis to assess operational risks faced by your Company;

		  g)	 To carry out any other function as mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

	 (iv)	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

		  The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. In Financial Year 2022-23, the Committee met four 
(4) times. The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and its brief terms of reference are 
presented below:

Sl.
No.

Date of Meeting Place of Meeting
No. of Members

attended the Meeting
Members of the 

Committee

1. 11.04.2022 Kolkata 2 out of 2
Mr. Rana Som 
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji 
Mr. Sandip Das

2. 11.11.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

3. 13.02.2023 Kolkata 3 out of 3

4. 21.03.2023 Kolkata 3 out of 3

		  Brief Terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

		  a)	 To evaluate the skill sets, knowledge and experience required in an Independent Director before the 
appointment of the same and, on the basis of such evaluation, to prepare a description of the role and 
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capabilities of an Independent Director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an 
Independent Director shall have the capabilities identified in such a description;

		  b)	 To formulate the criteria for evaluation of the performance of Independent Directors and the Board of 
Directors;

		  c)	 To devise a policy on diversity of the Board of Directors;

		  d)	 To extend or to continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report on 
the performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

		  e)	 To identify those who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and to recommend to the Board of Directors for their appointment/removal;

		  f )	 To oversee the framing, review and implementation of the compensation policy of your Company with the 
approval of the Board;

		  g)	 To work in close coordination with Risk Management Committee of your Company in order to achieve 
effective alignment between compensation and risks;

		  h)	 To ensure the ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/existing Directors and to ensure that there is no conflict of 
interest in appointment of Directors on the Board of your Company, KMP and senior management.

	 (v)	 RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

		  During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Committee has met once (1). The composition of the Risk Management 
committee and the brief terms of reference are outlined below: 

Sl 
No.

Date of Meeting Place of Meeting
No. of Members 

attended the Meeting
Members of the 

Committee

1. 13.02.2023 Kolkata 3 out of 3
Mr. Subrata Gupta 
Mr. Rana Som 
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji

		  Brief Terms of reference of Risk Management Committee:

		  a)	 To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

			   	 A framework for the identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, 
particularly including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (specifically, ESG-related risks), 
information, cyber security risks or any other risk as determined by the Committee.

			   	 Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes aimed at the internal control of identified risks.

			   	 Business continuity plan.

		  b)	 To review the major risk management procedures followed by your Company with regard to Operational and 
Process Risk, Credit and Portfolio Risk, Interest Rate Risk, Liquidity Risk, Strategy Risk, etc. Moreover, review 
the steps management has implemented to manage and mitigate identifiable risks;

		  c)	 To review with management and the Internal Auditor the significant business risks, political risks, financial 
and control risks, industry risks and the exposure to such risks;

		  d)	 To review the Internal Risk Based Audit (IRBA) system and ensure the relevant Grading/Scoring;

		  e)	 To review the Credit Risk policy including the risk acceptance criteria, to identify early warning signals through 
the Internal Inspection Department, to review the provisions and write-off policies, etc.

		  f )	 To review the Operational Risk events that have occurred during the given quarter and the systematic 
improvements taken/proposed by the Senior Management dealing with operational risks;

		  g)	 To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate the 
risks associated with the business of your Company;
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		  h)	 To keep the Board of Directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations 
and actions to be taken;

		  i)	 To manage funding and capital planning;

		  j)	 To address pricing, profit planning (value creation and profitability) and growth projections.

	 (vi)	 IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

		  The Board of Directors, in compliance with the RBI directions constituted the IT Strategy Committee. In Financial 
Year 2022-23, this Committee has met once (1). The composition of the IT Strategy Committee and its brief terms 
of reference are presented below:

Sl. 
No.

Date of Meeting Place of Meeting
No. of Members 

attended the Meeting
Members of the 

Committee

1. 21.03.2023 Kolkata 5 out of 5

Mr. Subrata Gupta 
Mr. Rana Som 
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji
Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh 
Mr. Sourav Ghosh

		  Brief Terms of reference of IT Strategy Committee

		  a)	 To review, oversee and ensure ongoing IT activities are based on or are developed, maintained and 
implemented in accordance with the security requirements;

		  b)	 To review and implement changes in the policy and procedures of Network management;

		  c)	 To review and analyse web-filter management;

		  d)	 To review and implement IT security, along with server, patch and change management;

		  e)	 To review the set of standards and procedures followed regarding the procurement of IT assets;

		  f )	 To review and verify whether IT Asset Management is in right place;

		  g)	 To review and verify Licence and Warranty management as well as Vendor management;

		  h)	 To review Incident management arising out of the accidental and malicious disruption of business processes;

		  i)	 To review policy on IT Physical and Environmental Security policy and procedure;

		  j)	 To review and monitor the processes of back-up scheduling and retention;

		  k)	 To review, establish and ensure the implementation of procedures of responding to an emergency or other 
occurrence hampering Business Continuity;

		  l)	 To review and ensure that Information resources are protected using access control systems that include both 
internal as well as external systems;

		  m)	 To ensure due compliance is maintained in terms of the applicable laws, rules, guidelines set out by the 
regulators and the government;

	 (vii)	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

		  The Board of Directors, in compliance of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, constituted 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

		  During the financial year 2022-23, the Committee did not met. The composition of the Corporate Social 
Responsibility committee and the brief terms of reference are shown below:

Sl. No. Name of Director Category Status

1 Mr. Rana Som Independent Director Chairperson

2 Mr Subrata Gupta Independent Director Member

3 Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh Managing Director Member

4 Mr. Sourav Ghosh Joint Managing Director Member
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		  Brief Terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

		  a)	 Formulation and recommendation to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, which shall indicate 
the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013.

		  b)	 Recommendation of the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities and monitoring the 
same.

		  c)	 Monitoring the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time.

	 (viii)	 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

		  In Financial Year 2022-23, the Executive Committee met Eighteen (18) times. The composition of the Executive 
Committee and its brief terms of reference are presented below:

Sl. 
No.

Date of Meeting Place of Meeting
No. of Members 

attended the  Meeting
Members of the 

Committee

1. 18.04.2022 Kolkata 4 out of 4

Mr. Dipankar Chatterji
Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh
Mr. Sourav Ghosh
Ms. Aatreyee Majumder

2. 30.05.2022 Kolkata 4 out of 4

3. 30.06.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

4. 30.07.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

5. 30.08.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

6. 24.08.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

7. 14.09.2022 Kolkata 4 out of 4

8. 19.10.2022 Kolkata 4 out of 4

9. 09.11.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

10. 05.12.2022 Kolkata 4 out of 4

11. 29.12.2022 Kolkata 3 out of 4

12. 04.01.2023 Kolkata 3 out of 4

13. 24.01.2023 Kolkata 4 out of 4

14. 07.02.2023 Kolkata 4 out of 4

15. 28.02.2023 Kolkata 3 out of 4

16. 17.03.2023 Kolkata 3 out of 4

17. 27.03.2023 Kolkata 3 out of 4

18. 28.03.2023 Kolkata 3 out of 4

	 (ix)	 CODE OF CONDUCT

		  The Board of Directors has laid down a ‘Code of Conduct’ for all the Board members, the senior management and 
the other employees of your Company.

	 (x)	 DISCLOSURE

		  a.	 There has been no instance of non-compliance by your Company nor any penalties imposed on by any 
authorities.

		  b.	 Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy that is duly approved by the Board.

		  c.	 In Financial Year 2022-23, no expenditure was debited in the books of accounts which were not relevant to 
the purposes of your Company’s business.

		  d.	 Your Company implemented preventive and redressal mechanisms aimed at the Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment (POSH) in the conspicuous places of the branch and the H.O.
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	 (xi)	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

		  The Annual Report and other statutory information are sent to shareholders in digital mode of communication.

	 (xii)	APPRISING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

		  Your Company keeps its Directors informed regarding the important developments referring to the performance 
of your Company, industry scenario and the regulatory changes.

	 (xiii)	 GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

		  a)	 Details of Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’)

Date 25.09.2023

Venue Head Office, Kolkata

Time 11:00 hours

		  b)	 The Financial Year of your Company is from 1st April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023

23.	 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

	 Pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors 

confirm the following:

	 	 In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year that ended on March 31st, 2023, the applicable accounting 

standards, read in light of the requirements set out under Schedule III of the Act, have been followed and there 

have been no material departures from the same;

	 	 The Directors have selected and consistently applied the accounting policies that are reasonable and prudent so 

as to give a true and fair view not only of the state of affairs of your Company as of 31st March, 2023, but also of 

the profit of your Company in the financial year that ended on the same date;

	 	 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care regarding the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act, in order to safeguard the assets of your Company and to prevent/detect 

fraud and other irregularities;

	 	 The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

	 	 The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by your Company and have ensured that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

	 	 The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and to 

verify that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

24.	 DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES  

	 Your Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy which is periodically reviewed. The main aim of this policy is to 

encourage employees and Directors to develop good faith reports of suspected fraud and corruption. Your Company 

has an established a mechanism for Directors, Employees, Borrowers and Investors to report concerns about unethical 

behaviour, actual or suspected fraud and violation of the Code of Conduct or Ethics policies. It also provides adequate 

safeguards against the victimisation of Directors, Employees, Borrowers and Investors who avail of the mechanism. 

This vigilance mechanism is duly incorporated in the Company’s policy that serves as a guide for its daily business 

interactions, reflecting positively its standard regarding appropriate behaviour and corporate values.
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25.	 CLIENT GRIEVANCE

	 During the year under review, the status of client grievances is as follows:

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

No. of Complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil

No. of Complaints received during the year 7 7

No. of Complaints redressed during the year 7 7

No. of Complaints pending at the end of the year Nil Nil

26.	 DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

	 Your Company has an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) in place, in line with the requirements of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 to redress complaints received 
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual or temporary) are covered according to the 
requirement of the Act. During the year under review, no relevant complaints were received.

27.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

	 The provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the conservation of energy do not apply 
to our Company. However, in line with the increase use of digital technologies in the midst of the pandemic, your 
Company used IT services extensively in Financial Year 2022-23. However, your Company had neither foreign exchange 
earnings nor any foreign outgo during the Financial Year 2022-23.

28.	 DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

	 During the year under review, no significant material orders were passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals against 
your Company that would impact its going concern status and its future operations. Thus, its current status and future 
operations reportedly remained unaffected as of 31st March, 2023.

29.	 DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	 In compliance with Section 139(5) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has laid down measures for internal 
financial controls; it ensures that these measures are adequate and operating effectively. Through such measures, 
your Company ensures that all relevant policies and procedures are adopted to facilitate the smooth conduction of its 
business. These include ensuring adherence to your Company’s policy, regulating its assets, preventing and detecting 
fraud and error and also maintaining the accuracy of the accounting records. In this respect, your Company also 
attempts to ensure the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

	 As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee of your Company regularly evaluates its internal 
financial control mechanisms and risk management systems.

30.	 INSTANCES OF FRAUDS, IF ANY REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 143(12) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

	 During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and the Secretarial Auditors did not report any instances of 
fraud committed in your Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee, under section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
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31.	 EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR 
ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE

	 There were no major qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditor in their report.

32.	 AUDITORS
	 a)	 Statutory Auditors – M/s Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number–301051E), was 

appointed as statutory auditor of your Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 01.10.2021. It confirmed 
its eligibility under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, to carry out the audit for the Financial Year 2022-23.

	 b)	 Cost Auditors – Your Company was not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government 
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, such records were not maintained.

		  No qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks were made by the Statutory Auditors in their reports, except the 
disclaimer made by them upon the discharge of their professional obligations.

33.	 COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
	 Your Company has robust systems in place to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable secretarial 

standards issued by “The Institute of Company Secretaries of India”. Such systems were deemed adequate and operating 
effectively as of the end of the Financial Year 2022-23.

34.	 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
	 Your Company has started extensively using Information Technology in its operations to monitor and control different 

activities such as loan processing, accounts, HR and MIS. All these activities of your Company are technologically 
driven and the relevant technology is obtained from third party providers. Indeed, in the year under review, the board 
meetings, committee meetings and other stakeholder meetings were held in virtual meeting platforms whenever 
required.

35.	 CREDIT BUREAU
	 In order to address the issues of multiple lending or over-indebtedness and also to gain information regarding the 

credit histories of customers prior to the sanction of any loans, your Company continues being a member of credit 
bureaus like CRIF, High Mark Credit Information Services Pvt. Ltd., Equifax Credit Information Services Pvt. Ltd., Experian 
and Transunion CIBIL Limited.

36.	 RISK MANAGEMENT

	 Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business. Sound risk management is critical to the success of your Company. 
Thus, the Board of Directors of your Company have formed a Risk Management Committee, primarily consisting of 
Independent Directors, to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan of your Company. The Board has 
also adopted a Risk Management Policy based on the recommendation of the Risk Management Committee in order 
to assess, monitor and manage the risks faced by your Company. This Committee is also responsible for reviewing the 
Company’s Risk Management Policy, ensuring its effectiveness, verifying its adherence to various risk parameters and 
ensuring an efficacious risk management structure.

	 Your Company’s approach to risk management is based on a clear understanding of various risks, disciplined risk 
assessment and continuous monitoring. Your Company’s Risk Management Committee reviews the various risks our 
organisation is susceptible to, namely Credit Risk, Business Environment Risk, Reputational Risk, Interest Rate Risk, 
Liquidity Risk and Operational Risk, among others.

	 The discussion regarding adherence to your Company’s Risk Management Policy is covered in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis in Annexure 1 of this report.
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37.	 WEBSITE DISCLOSURE
	 Your Company judiciously follows the website disclosure norms as per the rules set by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 

38.	 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
	 Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of annual return is a part of this Director’s report and is 
presented in Annexure 2.

39.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
	 Your Company has always behaved in a socially responsible manner by efficiently evaluating and addressing the growing 

needs of the communities among which it operates. It believes in making a lasting impact on these communities and 
envisions a just, equitable, humane and sustainable society that their members can enjoy. It is involved in various social 
and developmental activities to supplement its efforts of poverty alleviation. These activities complement its primary 
economic activity of empowering underprivileged women through microcredit loans.

	 The Board of Directors has approved your Company’s CSR Policy as recommended by its CSR Committee; it is available 
on your Company’s website.

	 Regarding the year under review, as per the amount, your Company spent on various CSR programmes and activities, 
the details of such activities are given in the report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities in Annexure 3 of the 
Board’s Report, in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.
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journey.

					     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata			   Dipankar Chatterji
Date: 12.05.2023		  Chairman
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Annexure 1

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

Jagaran Microfin Private Limited (‘Company’) is duly registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking Financial 
Company - Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI). Your Company is headquartered in Kolkata and is primarily engaged in 
providing microfinance loans to low-income households. Your Company focuses its operations in 5 states in India, with 134 
branches and 720 employees as of 31st March, 2023. 

Your Company focuses on reaching out to the underserved and unbanked populace of our country and providing financial 
services to rural/semi-urban women, following a village-centric, group-lending model to provide low-value, collateral-free 
loans. Your Company extends loans mainly for use in small businesses or for other income-generating activities. The model 
it follows relies on a form of ‘social collateral’ and ensures credit discipline through peer support within groups. In fact, your 
Company’s core business model is aimed at providing financial support to the abovementioned segment of our country’s 
population; disseminating financial literacy and awareness among its customers is an integral part of its core strategy. 
Adjacent to this strategy is your Company’s CSR policy that focuses on key activities like health, hygiene and primary 
education in the catchment areas of its operations.  

The portfolio of your Company stood at ₹33,887.69 lakhs at the end of the Financial Year 2022-23. Your Company achieved 
the Tier-I Capital of ₹9,445.90 lakhs and a rating of BBB (-) by  Acuité Ratings & Research with regard to bank loans of 
₹40,000 lakhs.

Further, your Company raised funds of about ₹26,100 lakhs through various sources during the Financial Year 2022-23. The 
net worth of your Company, as of 31st March, 2023, stood at ₹10,262.14 lakhs, while its revenue amounted to ₹6,516.49 
lakhs.

INDUSTRY SCENARIO

This microfinance sector continues to improve its portfolio quality while maintaining lower delinquency post the COVID-19 
pandemic. Going ahead, its asset quality seems to be getting better, with repayments and collection efficiency reaching the 
pre-COVID levels. This improvement is firmly backed by the recovery of the country’s economy. In fact, noticeable signs of 
recovery across have been witnessed across all economic sectors of the country post-COVID, which strongly indicate the 
presence of resilient customer base.

A very important development for the microfinance sector has been the rollout of the New Eligibility Guidelines by the RBI 
on 14th March, 2022. This new set of guidelines have provided lenders (of any category, be it a public sector bank, private 
bank, NBFC, NBFC-MFI, or of any other kind) engaged in the business of microfinance a framework which clearly defines the 
operational criteria to be followed uniformly across the country. The key changes are as follows:

	 Household income-based customer eligibility criteria: Henceforth, everyone with a total household income of ≤ 
₹3,00,000 per annum can potentially qualify as a microfinance customer. Earlier, loans could be disbursed by an NBFC-
MFI only to borrowers with a rural household annual income not exceeding ₹1,25,000.00 or urban and semi-urban 
household incomes not exceeding ₹2,00,000.00.

	 Overall debt servicing level/expense assessment: As per the new guidelines, the computation of loan repayment 
obligations shall take into account all outstanding loans (collateral-free microfinance loans as well as any other type 
of collateralised loans) of the household. The outflows, capped at 50% of the monthly household income, shall include 
repayments (including both principal as well as interest components) towards all existing loans as well as the loan under 
consideration.

	 Flexible, transparent pricing mechanism, doing away with the earlier 10% and 12% margin caps on COF (cost of funds).

	 No restrictions on total exposure, loan amount size per product and number of lenders.
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	 Qualifying portfolio, as a proportion of the total assets requirement for a lender, has been reduced from 85% to 75%. 

These guidelines have provided a much needed ‘level playing field’ for all players in the microfinance sector by practically 
nullifying whatever arbitrage(s) were there for certain categories of lenders. They have also removed all the erstwhile caps on 
aspects like gross exposure/number of lenders/pricing margin, etc., in order to provide greater operational flexibility while 
simultaneously facilitating the introduction of risk-premium-based pricing, thus benefiting customers who demonstrate a 
relatively better credit discipline.

Microfinance Industry – Key Takeaways (source Micrometer report as of 31st March, 2023)

This section outlines the overall position of the country’s microfinance industry in terms of various categories of lenders, 
including NBFC-MFIs, banks, SFBs, NBFCs and other MFIs (including non-profit MFIs).

Based on the data as of 31st March, 2023, the country’s microfinance industry has total loan portfolio (i.e. loan amount 
outstanding) of ₹3,48,339 crores. The total number of active loans accounts is 13.0 crores involving 8.8 crore unique 
borrowers as of 31st March, 2023. The YoY (31st March, 2022 to 31st March, 2023) growth of GLP is 22.0%. Moreover, 
as of 31st March 2023, 82 NBFC-MFIs are the main providers of microcredit with a loan amount outstanding of ₹1,38,310 
crores. accounting for 39.7% of the total industry portfolio. Further, 13 banks hold the second-largest portfolio share in 
microcredit, with total loan outstanding of ₹1,19,133 crores. which constitutes 34.2% of the total microcredit universe. SFBs 
have a total loan amount outstanding of ₹57,828 crores. with total share of 16.6%. NBFCs account for another 8.5% and other 
MFIs account for 1.0% of this universe. The table below captures the key portfolio and outreach numbers of the five broad 
categories of microfinance lenders.

Lender wise overall status of Loan Portfolio in Microfinance Industry

Type of 
Entity

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2023

No. of 
entities

Unique 
Borrowers 

(Crores) 

Active 
Loan 

Accounts 
(Crores)

Portfolio 
Outstanding 
(₹ in Crores)

No. of 
entities

Unique 
Borrowers 

(Crores) 

Active 
Loan 

Accounts 
(Crores)

Portfolio 
Outstanding 
(₹ in Crores)

NBFC-MFIs 84 2.7 4.2 1,00,407 82 2.9 5.1 1,38,310

Banks 12 2.9 4.3 1,14,051 13 3.3 4.7 1,19,133

SFBs 9 1.4 1.8 48,314 9 1.6 2.0 57,828

NBFCs 58 0.7 0.8 19,698 69 0.9 1.0 29,440

Others 39 0.1 0.2 2,971 38 0.1 0.2 3,629

Total 202 7.8 11.3 2,85,441 211 8.8 13 3,48,340

In terms of geographic spread, 77.3% of the portfolio is rural and 22.7% is urban. This demonstrates  the extent of microfinance 
penetration in rural India. (Refer Diagram below)

22.7%

77.3%

Rural Urban
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In terms of purpose, the exposures are mentioned in the table below:

Lending Purpose Share of total GLP (%)

Agriculture and Allied Activities(Total) 63.5%

Non-Agriculture(Total) 34.2%

Trade and Services 27.8%

Manufacturing/Production 6.4%

Household Finance (Total) 2.3%

Education 0.2%

Medical 0.0%

Housing/Home Improvement 1.1%

Other household finance 1.0%

GLP as: Gross Loan Portfolio

Some of the Key highlights regarding the overall performance of the microfinance sector for the Financial Year 2022-23 are 
mentioned hereunder:

Indicator
As of 

31st March, 2022
As of 

31st March, 2023

YoY Change (%) as on
Financial Year 2022-23 over 

Financial Year 2021-22

Branches 16,171 18,739 15.88%

Employees 1,38,527 1,61,010 15.85%

Clients (in Crores) 3.3 3.9 18.18%

Loan accounts (in Crores) 3.8 4.6 36.84%

Gross Loan Portfolio (Crores in ₹) 1,00,407 1,38,310 37.74%

Loans Disbursed (in Crores) 2.20 3.1 40.90%

Loan Amount disbursed (Crores in ₹) 81,936 1,30,563 59.35%

Note: The above figures are based on the analysis of member NBFC-MFIs of MFIN that are registered with the Reserve Bank 
of India   

OPPORTUNITIES   

The microfinance industry of the country has already proved its viability as a business model and has demonstrated its ability 
to reach out to a significant section of the population which needs mainstreaming. It will continue to remain a relevant and 
important conduit for providing financial services to a vast segment of the population, acting in complementarity with 
banks. However, given the inherent vulnerability of the industry’s customer base, we, at Jagaran, have planned for current 
and future risks that can impact repayments and slow down our access to/regulation of credit lines for the underserved. 

The new guidelines issued by the RBI, expanding the qualification criteria for a customer to be tapped by the microfinance 
sector, provide a potentially wider strike zone for all, eventually facilitating sector growth. 

	 Integration of Comprehensive Credit Report with microfinance loans will greatly help in improving the overall portfolio 
quality by optimising exposure levels and inculcating greater credit discipline. 

	 Better growth prospects coupled with improvement in portfolio quality post the COVID-19 pandemic will encourage 
investments and improve liquidity support for all lenders across the sector. 

	 Greater responsibility resting with the respective Boards of lenders will help strengthen corporate governance.

Currently, your Company notes a lot of potential for growth in various regions which are still untapped and where there are 
substantial needs, demands and opportunities for microfinance. Your Company intends to expand its reach and operations 
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in the states where it is currently present and initiate work in new states by increasing business transactions through existing 
branches and establishing newer branches/offices in the near future.

Your Company shall continue to not only evaluate the opportunities that meet our strategic and financial return criteria but 
also strengthen our portfolio.                                                    

CHALLENGES

Risk and challenges are inherent and integral to financial services in general and microfinance in particular. Some of the 
existing challenges faced by the country’s microfinance institutions are: 

	 Alarmingly high inflation which impacts the income and repayment abilities of micro borrowers;

	 Unpredictability of the COVID-19 waves, a major threat given the impact on the sector of the three COVID-19 waves since 
March 2020;

	 Natural events like lower-than-expected monsoons, floods, cyclones, etc.;

	Widespread dependency on the Indian banking system;

	 Lack of enough awareness about financial services in the economic sector;

OUTLOOK

The overall scenario of the country’s microfinance industry has been improving and its future outlook seems impressive. Your 
Company also considers improving its on-ground services and providing extended support to customers whose lives have 
become very difficult because of these challenging circumstances mentioned above. Currently, your Company is focusing on 
the optimisation of funding costs, identification of potential business areas, widening geographical reach, use of technology, 
cost efficiencies, strict credit monitoring and raising customer service levels. 

Given the strong uptick in fresh disbursements, the outlook of the microfinance sector is quite positive. Rural India has once 
again demonstrated its resilience against adversity and is leading from the front in ensuring higher credit offtake especially 
in the retail lending portfolio segments throughout the country. Driven by a strong latent demand, many of the players in 
this sector have seen relative new highs in their respective disbursement levels and a sustained improvement in collection 
efficiency levels.

The rollout of new guidelines for the Microfinance sector by RBI in March 2022 has added to the conviction in this sector, 
being welcomed by all the MFIs involved in micro lending business, namely NBFC-MFIs, NBFCs, banks, SFBs, etc. The new 
guidelines have directionally provided a ‘level playing’ field and removed the limits imposed selectively on pricing, overall 
exposure, number of lenders, ticket size, etc.

All the leading players in the microfinance sector are targeting its untapped potential with renewed enthusiasm. This augurs 
well for this sector in Financial Year 2023-24.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Your Company, being involved in the business of micro lending, is susceptible to multiple risks like credit risks, operational 
risks, liquidity risks and regulatory risks. The Board of Directors of your Company is composed of professional Directors whose 
vast industry experience in risk management continues to be beneficial. The Directors are extremely well-versed when it 
comes to understanding the risks specific to your Company. Your Company believes that managing risks helps in maximising 
returns. Hence, the instituted Risk Management framework of our company tends to reduce the company-specific risks quite 
effectively. 

It must be mentioned that your Company has inserted adequate risk-checking mechanisms in compliance with the 
regulations framed by RBI, SEBI and MCA that are applicable to it. It also has a dedicated team that efficiently manages and 
mitigates such risks. Your Company also follows a conservative financial approach by following prudent business and risk 
management practices. Further, your Company has introduced sufficient cautionary procedures in its systems and processes 
to mitigate the adverse effects of risks.
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Your Company has integrated risk management practices into its governance and operations. Appropriate systems and 
tools are in place for identifying, measuring, reporting and managing risks. Your Company follows the ‘three lines of defence’ 
approach for managing risks. At the first line of defence are the various Business and Support functions, the second line 
includes the Risk Management and Compliance function and the third line of defence comprises the Audit function.

All policies and processes of your Company have been designed to accommodate periodic reviews and mitigation of all 
the risks faced by it, including credit risks, market risks, operational risks, reputation risks, liquidity risks, technology risks, 
business and strategic risks, legal and compliance risks. 

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

The financial year under review was a year of consolidation and your Company registered a good performance in the 
same. From an operational perspective, your Company took important strides which promise to make its profitable growth 
sustainable. In light of our best efforts, there was a growth in the loan portfolio of your Company during the financial year 
under review. In such times of transition, our Company focused on developing the efficiency of our collection methods. 
Moreover, our incredible field force, supported by other team members, worked hard to bring your Company back on a 
positive growth trajectory. Your Company’s dedicated team approached, interacted and meted out financial advice to its 
own customers through phone calls; eventually, collections improved considerably. Further, your Company focused its 
attention on the timely repayment of its own obligation and the strengthening of its internal control processes. It did not 
open any new branches during the year under review and its customer count stood at 1,45,959 at the end of this year.

During the year under review, your Company also availed of credit facilities from banks for its microfinance operations.

On a further congratulatory note, your Company was assigned a positive rating by Acuité Ratings & Research Limited on 
bank Loans of ₹40,000 lakhs during the Financial Year 2022-23. With an experienced and stable management team and an 
excellent Board of Directors, your Company is hopeful of performing well in the coming years.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company believes in maintaining a strong internal control framework and sees such a framework as an essential prerequisite 
for the growth of its business. It has well-documented policies, procedures and authorisation guidelines in place to ensure that 
all activities are monitored and controlled against any unauthorised use or disposition of assets and the misappropriation of 
funds, as well as to ensure that all the relevant transactions are authorised, recorded, reported and monitored correctly. Your 
Company also has an effective system of accounting and administrative controls, being supported by an internal audit system 
with adequate internal checks and controls, to ensure the safety and detailed recordings of all Company’s assets and their 
proper and authorised utilisation. As part of the effort to evaluate the effectiveness of its internal control systems, the Internal 
Auditors of your Company conduct audits of various departments and across all Company locations (penetrating all functional 
areas/key areas of operations), review and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, ensure adherence to 
operating guidelines and systems and recommend improvements for strengthening them. 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, comprising Independent Directors, periodically reviews the internal audit 
reports, covering the findings, the adequacy of internal controls and the compliances applicable to your Company. The Audit 
Committee also meets Company’s Statutory Auditors to ascertain their views on the financial statements, including those 
on the financial reporting system, on the compliance with accounting policies and procedures and on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the internal controls and relevant systems followed by your Company. Your Company’s management acts 
upon the observations and suggestions of the Audit Committee. 

In the year under review, your Company’s control systems were tested and no reportable material weakness in the operation 
or design of these systems was observed.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company is cognisant of the importance of human capital in a fast-evolving and high-growth industry like the one 
it operates in. Our people are our most important assets. Thus, your Company is committed to hiring and retaining the 
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best talent. For this purpose, we focus on promoting a collaborative, transparent and participative/inclusive organisational 
culture, along with rewarding acts of merit and sustaining a high performance. Your Company also emphasises human 
resource management, which allows its employees to develop their skills and grow in their careers. 

Furthermore, your Company has set up a well-structured induction process for new employees and also looks to provide 
adequate support to upskill its employees. Your Company constantly strives to strengthen its employees in alignment with 
its business needs and continues to engage them through various initiatives in the fields of learning and development 
opportunities, reward and recognition, employee engagement activities and career growth. Moreover, your Company has 
been able to leverage and digitise end-to-end processes ranging from sourcing, recruiting, on-boarding and engaging with 
people, thus reducing frictions with regard to your Company’s operations. In addition, your Company strives for gender 
balance as a business imperative, knowingly well that gender balance and an increased number of women in leadership 
roles will help it deliver a sustainable growth.

Your Company has progressive Human Resource policies which promote a favourable work culture among its employees 
and encourage them to perform to their highest abilities.

Importantly, your Company experienced minimum attrition during the year under review and as of 31st March, 2023, the 
number of its employees stood at 720.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Certain statements made in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report relating to your Company’s objectives, 
projections, outlook, expectations, estimates and other aspects may be considered as progressive statements aligned with 
the applicable laws and regulations. The actual results may differ from such expectations, whether expressed or implied. 
Several factors could make a significant difference to your Company’s operations; these include climatic and economic 
conditions affecting demand and supply, government regulations and taxation, in addition to natural calamities over which 
your Company does not have any direct control.

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata	 Dipankar Chatterji
Date: 12.05.2023	 Chairman
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Annexure 2

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

For the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023
of

JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

(i) CIN U74210WB1993PTC057457
(ii) Registration Date 21.06.2011
(iii) Name of the Company Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
(iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Private Company/ Limited by Shares
(v) Address of the Registered Office and 

Contact Details
5th Floor, 38 Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkata - 700001 
Tel : 03322628207 
Fax : 
Email: info@jagaranmf.com 
Website: www.jagaranmf.com

(vi) Whether listed Company Yes listed for NCD with BSE
(vii) Name, Address and contact details of 

Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any
Link Intime India Private Limited (for NCD) 
46-C, Jawaharlal Nehru Rd, Kankaria Estates
Bhowanipore, Kolkata, West Bengal 700071 
Contact details - 033 22890539100
CB Management Services Private Limited 
P-22, Bondel Rd, Ballygunge Park, Ballygunge, Kolkata 
West Bengal 700019
Contact details - 033 4011 6700

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
	 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main 
products/services

NIC Code of the Product/ 
service

% to total turnover 
of the Company

1. Financial and Related Services 9971 100%

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. 
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF 
THE COMPANY

CIN/GLN
HOLDING/

SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1.
GTFS Multi Services Limited 
6th Floor, 38 Hemanta Basu 

Sarani, Kolkata – 700001

U74140WB2003 
PLC097206

Holding Company 72.09% 2(87)(ii)
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IV.	 SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

	 (i)	 Category-wise Shareholding

Category of Shareholding

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % % of 
Change 

during the 
year

Demat Physical Total
% of
Total

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of
Total

Shares
A. Promoter

(1) Indian

(a) Individual/HUF 97,10,400 97,10,400 20.10 1,27,37,900 1,27,37,900 24.83 4.73

(b) Central Govt.

(c) State Govt. (s)

(d) Bodies Corp. 3,48,15,600 3,48,15,600 72.09 3,48,15,600 3,48,15,600 72.09 -

(e) Banks / FI

(f ) Any Other….

Sub-total (A) (1): 4,45,26,000 4,45,26,000 92.19 4,75,53,500 4,75,53,500 92.19 -

(2) Foreign

(a) NRIs -

Individuals

(b) Other –

Individuals

(c) Bodies Corp.

(d) Banks / FI

(e) Any Other….

Sub-total (A) (2):-

Total

Shareholding of Promoter  
(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

B. Public Shareholding

1 Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds

(b) Banks / FI

(c) Central Govt

(d) State Govt (s)

(e) Venture Capital Funds

(f ) Insurance Companies

(g) FIIs

(h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds

(2) Other ₹(specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2 Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian

(ii) Overseas

(b) Individuals

(i) Individual 
shareholding
holding nominal share 
capital upto ₹1 lakh

37,70,200 37,70,200 7.81 37,42,700 37,42,700 7.29 0.55

(ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of 
₹1 lakh

Other (specify)

Sub-total (B)(2):- Total Public 
Shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by Custodian for 
GD₹& AD₹

Grand Total (A+B+C) 4,82,96,200 4,82,96,200 5,12,96,200 5,12,96,200
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IV.	 SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) (Contd.)

	 (ii)	 Shareholding of Promoter

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the Year % change 
In share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged /

encumbered 
to total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged /

encumbered 
to total shares

1. GTFS Multi Services Limited 3,48,15,600 72.09% - 3,48,15,600 67.87% - 4.22%
2. Ms. Abira Majumder 37,10,400 7.68% - 47,37,900 9.23% - 1.55%
3. Ms. Aatreyee Majumder 30,00,000 6.21% - 40,00,000 7.79% - 1.58%
4. Mr. Adipta Majumder 30,00,000 6.21% - 40,00,000 7.79% - 1.58%

	 (iii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares
% of total shares  
of the Company

No. of shares
% of total shares  
of the Company

1 At the beginning of the year 4,45,11,000 92.16 4,45,11,000 92.16
2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoter Shareholding during the 
Year specifying the reasons for increase 
/ decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc):

30,00,000 0.54 30,00,000 0.54

3 At the end of the year 4,75,53,500 92.70% 4,75,53,500 92.70%

	 (iv)	 Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Director, Promoter and Holder of GD₹and AD₹):

Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 shareholders
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares
% of total shares  
of the Company

No. of shares
% of total shares  
of the Company

1 At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

2

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share-
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat 
equity etc):

Nil Nil Nil Nil

3
At the End of the year (or on the date of 
separation, if Separated during the year)

Nil Nil Nil Nil

	 (v)	 Shareholding of Director and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Directors and KMP
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares
% of total shares  
of the Company

No. of shares
% of total shares  
of the Company

1
At the beginning of the year

Ms Aatreyee Majumder Director 30,00,000 6.21% 30,00,000 6.21%

2

Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus / sweat equity etc): 

10,00,000 1.58% 40,00,000 7.79%

Ms Aatreyee Majumder Director

Allotment of new shares on 17.08.2022

3
At the End of the year

Ms Aatreyee Majumder Director 40,00,000 7.79% 40,00,000 7.79%
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V.	 INDEBTEDNESS

	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
Financial Year

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits
Total 

Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount 30,417.14 500.00 - 30,917.14

ii) Interest due but not paid 378.81 0.43 - 379.25

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 30,795.96 500.43 - 31,296.39

Change in Indebtedness during the  

Financial Year
 Addition 19,350.00 - - -
 Reduction 21,565.76 - - -

Net Change (2,215.76) - - -

Indebtedness at the end of the Financial Year

i) Principal Amount 28,403.63 500.00 - 28,903.68

ii) Interest due but not paid 176.51 0.43 - 176.94

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 28,580.19 500.43 - 29,080.62

 (₹in lakhs)

VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

	 A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager:

Sl. 
No.

Particular of Remuneration
Managing 

Director (₹)

Whole-time 
Director  

Ms. Aatreyee 
Majumder (₹)

CEO & Whole 
time Director 
Mr. Jaydeep 

Ghosh (₹)

Total Amount 
(₹)

1.

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1)  
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

37,28,444 34,67,700 34,67,700 1,06,63,844

(b) Value of perquisites u/s  
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under

2. Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil

3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil

4.

Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil

- as % of profit

- other, specify…

5. Other, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total

Ceiling as per the Act 11% of Net Profit 11% of Net Profit 11% of Net Profit 1,06,63,844
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VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (Contd.)
	 B.	 Remuneration to other Directors:

Sl. 
No.

Particular of Remuneration
Name of Director (₹50,000/- 

and 15,000/-for 5 independent 
Director and 1 NEDs)

Total Amount 
(₹)

1. Independent Directors
 Fee for attending board / committee meetings 14,90,000 14,90,000
 Commission - -
 Other, please specify - -
Total (1) 14,90,000 14,90,000

2. Other Non-Executive Director
 Fee for attending board /committee meetings 4,05,000 -
 Commission - -
 Other, please specify - -
Total (2) 4,05,000 4,05,000
Total (B)=(1+2) 18,95,000 18,95,000

	 C.	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/WTD:

Sl. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Company Secretary (₹) CFO (₹) CEO (₹) Total (₹)

1

Gross salary 6,48,765 3,35,980 34,67,700 44,52,445
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 

Income Tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil

- as % of profit
- other, specify…

5 Other, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total 6,48,765 3,35,980 34,67,700 44,52,445

VII.	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type

Section 
of the 

Companies 
Act, 2013

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty /

Punishment/
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
[RD/NCLT/

COURT]

Appeal 
made, 

if any (give 
Details)

A. COMPANY
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

				    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata		  Dipankar Chatterji
Date: 12.05.2023		  Chairman
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Annexure 3

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

A BRIEF OUTLINE OF YOUR COMPANY’S CSR POLICY 

POLICY STATEMENT

In April 2014, India became one of the first countries to make Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) mandatory, following 

the prescriptions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 

Rules 2014. These governmental prescriptions allow companies to practise corporate citizenship and work towards fulfilling 

their social responsibilities. In this context, since its inception your Company has demonstrated an acute awareness of social 

circumstances and has committed itself to the economic empowerment of women.

Social scientists and economists have identified that the lack of stable incomes and financial independence has greatly 

contributed to gender inequality, resulting in the disenfranchisement of women. Keeping this in mind, in the last few years 

your Company, through various ventures, has facilitated the economic empowerment of several women and their families 

residing in the rural and semi-urban parts of West Bengal, Bihar, Jharkhand, Assam and Orissa. These ventures have helped 

them ensure a stable livelihood, support their families and improve the overall well-being of their communities. To ensure 

the socio-economic development of the local communities we work with, your Company has introduced various Corporate 

Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives and shall continue to do the same in the future.

Further, as a socially responsible and environment-conscious corporate citizen, your Company contributes to social, 

educational and environmental causes on a regular basis. As part of our CSR endeavours, we are committed primarily to the 

following sectors:

	 Promoting education;

	 Enabling access to proper healthcare and sanitation;

	 Fostering skill-based employment schemes for women and organising the associated training programmes;

	 Facilitating the development of environment-friendly community practices;

The ever-growing trajectory of our CSR activities demonstrates our sustained commitment to various social causes. We work 

towards and aim for the successful completion of all the projects we undertake. Additionally, your Company is committed 

to maintaining the highest standards of responsible corporate behaviour towards its investors, stakeholders and employees.

ORGANISATION SET-UP

Your Company’s CSR initiatives are formulated under the leadership of the Board’s Committee on CSR, which involves four 

directors. The terms of reference of the Committee include the following:

a)	 To formulate and recommend to the Board a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by your 

Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules outlined thereunder.

b)	 To recommend the amount of expenditure that can be devoted to the CSR activities undertaken by your Company.

c)	 To monitor the implementation of the framework regarding CSR Policy.

d)	 To carry out any other relevant function as mandated by the Board from time to time and/or that enforced by any 

statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable, necessary or appropriate regarding the 

successful performance of its duties.
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SCOPE OF ACTIVITIES

The CSR activities are subject to the provisions of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

Summary of the CSR activities undertaken during the Financial Year 2022-23:

(₹in lakhs)

SL. No. Items Total Budget Total Expense Overspent/Unspent (+/-)

1 Education Programmes (Pre-primary) 7,50,000 7,77,565 (-) 27,565

2 Health Check-up & Awareness Camps 30,400 27,800 (+)2,600

3 Skill Development Training on Tailoring (SDT) 20,000 42,368 (-) 22,368

4 Entrepreneurship Dev. Programmes (EDP) - - -

5 Social Security Programme with Govt. of India - - -

6 Financial Literacy &  Inclusion Programmes 8,000 1,32,373 (-) 1,24,373

7 Group  Leadership Training Programmes - - -

8 Merit Scholarship 5,42,000 3,36,500 (+) 2,05,500

9 Admin Costs 1,01,600 1,01,600 -

10 PMNRF (Over-spent from the last year) 5,80,000 5,80,000 -

11 PMNRF (Current year) - - -

12 Others (Bandhu, Assam Relief ) - 1,00,500 (-) 1,00,500

TOTAL 20,32,000 20,98,706 (-) 66,706

DETAILS OF CSR EXPENDITURE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23
(₹in lakhs)

Particulars Amount

Amount outlay (budgeted) 20,32,000.00

Amount spent on projects 20,98,706.00

Excess amount spent 66,706.00

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata	 Dipankar Chatterji
Date:  12.05.2023	 Chairman
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LENDERS’  PROFILE
Jagaran is a cumulative effort and contribution of all our partners who have supported us in every step.

HABITAT MICROBUILD INDIA HFC PVT. LTD
1st Floor, “Rrk Jayam”, No-20 , 28th Main, 37th 
Cross, Jayanagar 9th Block, Bangalore - 560069

JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LTD
The Fairway Business Park, #10/1, 11/2, & 12/2B Off 
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring Road, Next To Egl, 
Challaghatta, Bengaluru - 560071

NABFINS LIMITED
Nabfins Limited, #3072, 14th Cross, K.R. Road, 
Banashankari 2nd Stage, Bengaluru - 560 070

BANGALORE

NABSAMRUDDHI FINANCE LIMITED
10-1-128/4, 3rd Floor, Nabard Quarters, Behind 
Paradise Take Away, Masab Tank, Hyderabad-500028

OIKO CREDIT (MAANAVEEYA DEVELOPMENT & 
FINANCE)
Manaveeya Development & Finance Pvt. Ltd. 
Prashanthi Towers, H.No. 8-2-293/82, 4th Floor, 
Road No. 92, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad – 500 034, 
Telangana, (Landmark: Above Federal Bank )

HYDERABAD

GROW MONEY CAPITAL PVT. LTD.
211, New Delhi House, 27, Barakhamba Road,  
New Delhi - 110001, 011-66308237, 40045966

SHINE STAR BUILD-CAP PVT. LTD.
C-3, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-1,   
New Delhi -110020

USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
330, Mezzanine Floor, Functional Industrial Estate, 
Patparganj, Delhi – 110092

NEW DELHI

INCRED FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Hdil, Kale Donia Building, Unit No. 3B-02 and 203 - B 
Wing, Sahar Rd, Opposite D Mart, Sambhaji Nagar, 
Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400069

BLACKSOIL CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
1105, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013

MK VENTURES CAPITAL LTD
Express Towers, Ramnath Goenka Marg, Nariman 
Point, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400021, India

MUMBAI

BANK OF BARODA
Tegharia Branch, Yamunotri Appartment, VIP Main 
Road (Opp. Haldirams), Kolkata-700 052

BANK OF MAHARASHTRA
No 3, Mcleod House, NS Road, Kolkata - 700001

CANARA BANK
8/1, Middleton, Kolkata -700071

IDBI BANK
44, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-700017

INDIAN BANK
P/13 Kalakar Street, Burrabazar, Kolkata-700007

INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK
P-35, India Exchange Place, Kolkata- 700001

PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK
P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata-700019

SAIDHAM MERCANTILE PVT LTD
71 Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Suite 12, 3rd Floor, 
Kolkata 700013

STATE BANK OF INDIA
SME Branch, Salt Lake, Plot No. x-1/8/1 Block-Ep, 
Sector-V, Electronic Complex Salt Lake,  
Kolkata - 700 091

UCO BANK
New Market Branch, 3 & 4 Lindsey Street, 
Kolkata 700087

DHANLAXMI BANK
Vasundhara , Ground Floor, 2/7 Sarat Bose Road, 
Kolkata-700020

ICICI BANK
House 3A, Gurusaday Road, Kolkata-700019

UNION BANK OF INDIA
ULB 2, Sector 3, Salt Lake City, Near RBI Residential 
Qtr, Kolkata- 700106

WEST BENGAL

ANANYA FINANCE FOR INCLUSIVE GROWTH 
PVT. LTD.
903, 9Th Floor, Sakar-9,B/S. Old Rbi, Ashram Road, 
Ahmedabad - 380009

AHMEDABAD

NABKISAN FINANCE LTD. (NKFL)
48, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam, 
Chennai – 600 034

CHENNAI

AHMEDABAD
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AHMEDABAD

ESAF SMALL FINANCE BANK
ESAF Bhavan, Annex II, Mannuthy, 
Thrissur - 680651, Kerala

KERALA

ELECTRONICA FINANCE LIMITED
Kailaschandra Aprt., 128 / 1A, Paud Road, Kothrud, 
Pune - 411038 (India)

PUNE

MICROFINANCE INITIATIVE FUND 
FOR ASIA OVERSEAS



Jagaran Annual Report 22-2355

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

THE MEMBERS OF JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jagaran Microfin Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the 
year ended on that date (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time (hereinafter referred 
to as “IND AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2023, its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (hereinafter referred to as “SAs”) notified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (hereinafter referred to as “the ICAI”) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. We have considered the matters described below to be the key audit matters for incorporation in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” 
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The result of our 
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our opinion on 
the accompanying financial statements.
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Sl. No. Key Audit Matters Addressing the Key Audit Matters

1. The management estimates impairment 
provision using ECL model for the loan 
exposure. Recognition and measurement 
of impairment of loans involve significant 
management judgement. The Company’s 
impairment allowance is derived from 
estimates including the historical defaults 
and expected recovery against outstanding 
amounts. 

Collective impairment allowances are 
calculated using ECL model which 
approximates credit conditions on 
homogeneous portfolio of loans.

The aforesaid involves significant 
management estimates/ judgements and 
hence identified as Key Audit Matter.

Our audit procedures based on which we arrived at the conclusion 
regarding reasonableness:

• Obtaining an understanding of the model adopted by the 
Company for calculation of expected credit losses and the 
appropriateness of the data on which the calculation is based;

• Tested the key assumptions used by the Company in the 
ECL Model. Tested the input data used for determining the 
Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) rates 
and agreed the data with the books of accounts and records.

• Tested samples for staging of loans based on their past-due 
status to check compliance in respect of the requirements of 
IND AS 109.

• Tested the calculation of the workings of the expected credit 
losses;

• Evaluated the appropriateness, in accordance with the applicable 
accounting standard and approved policies as per the Reserve 
Bank of India (hereinafter referred to as “the RBI”) guidelines, 
of the determination of significant increase in credit risk on 
account of moratorium and restructuring benefit extended.

This, being technical matter, reliance has been placed on the 
management’s assumption for recovery etc. in future.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above 
when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report with respect to the above.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards notified under section 133 
of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder from time to time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal controls;

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management;

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern; and

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
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significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as “the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, 
we report that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books;

	 c)	 The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under 
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time 
to time;

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of section 164(2) of the Act; and

	 f )	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our 
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control with reference to the financial statements of the Company.

3.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

	 i.	 Pending litigations (other than those already recognized in the financial statements) having material impact on 
the financial position of the Company have been disclosed in the financial statements as required in terms of 
accounting standards and provisions of the Act- refer note no. 31 to the financial statements;

	 ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses;

	 iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company;

	 iv.	 a.	 The Company receives the fund and advances the same as loan as part of its normal business activities and 
as such, has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in note no. 40C to the 
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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		  b.	 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in note no. 40C to the 
financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

		  c.	 Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11(e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, as provided 
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement;

	 v.	 The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the financial year; and

	 vi.	 Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, for maintaining books 
of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to 
the Company with effect from April 01, 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 
2023.

4.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended from time to time, in our opinion and to the best of our information, the Company is a 
private limited company and hence, provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

				    For LODHA & CO.

				    Chartered Accountants

				    Firm’s Registration No.: 301051E

				    Boman R Parakh

				    (Partner)

Place: Kolkata		 Membership No.: 053400

Date: May 12, 2023	 UDIN: 23053400BGSCMR1845
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ANNEXURE “A” 

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of even 
date to the members of Jagaran Microfin Private Limited)

i.	 In respect of the Company’s Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

	 a.	 1.	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situations of its Property, plant and equipment; and

		  2.	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets;

	 b.	 During the year, Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management pursuant to a 

regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 

the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 

noticed on such verification;

	 c.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the relevant records 

of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable properties in the nature of freehold or leasehold 

land and building. Accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company;

	 d.	 The Company has not revalued any of its Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets during the year. The 

Company does not have any Right-of-use assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company; and

	 e.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management, no proceedings 

have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any 

benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, as 

amended from time to time. Accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(e) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company.

ii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books of account of the 
Company:

	 a.	 The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (hereinafter referred to as (“NBFC”), primarily engaged in the 
business of lending and accordingly, does not hold any inventories. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ii)(a) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company; and

	 b.	 The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limit on the basis of security of Current Assets of the 
Company at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii.	 a. 	 According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the books of account 
of the Company, the principal business of the Company is to grant loan and accordingly clause (iii)(a) of paragraph 
3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

	 b.	 The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (hereinafter referred 
to as “the RBI Act”). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and 
conditions of the grant of all loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s 
interest. The Company has not made any investments or provided any guarantee or security and has also not 
granted any advances in the nature of loans during the year;
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	 c.	 The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of the RBI Act and rules made thereunder, in pursuance 
of its compliance with provisions of the said Act/ Rules, particularly in respect of the Income Recognition, Asset 
Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its customers. 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans, the terms of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and in certain cases repayment of principal 
and payment of interest has not been made in accordance with such stipulation. Refer note no. 41.8 to the financial 
statements for summarized details of such loans and categorization thereof based on record of recovery. The 
Company has not granted any advances in the nature of loans during the year;

	 d.	 The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of RBI Act and Rules made thereunder, in pursuance of 
its compliance with provisions of the said Act/ Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and 
Provisioning Norms, monitors and reports total amount overdue including principal and/ or payment of interest by 
its customers for more than 90 days. The following table shows the details of principal and interest amount overdue 
for more than 90 days. According to the information and explanation made available to us, reasonable steps have 
been taken by the Company for recovery thereof;

No. of cases
Principal amount 

overdue
Interest 
overdue

Total 
overdue

Remarks

11,305 1,182.74 463.62 1,646.36
Reasonable steps for collection 
of the same is being taken by the 
Company.

	 e.	 According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the books of account 
of the Company, the principal business of the Company is to grant loan and accordingly, clause (iii)(e) of paragraph 
3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company; and

	 f.	 According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the books of account, 
the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of section 186(1) of the Act, the other provisions of section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the books of account, the 
Company has not granted any loan or provided any guarantee or security as covered under section 185 of the Act and 
accordingly, reporting in this respect is not applicable to the Company.

v.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books of account, the 
Company being a NBFC registered with the RBI, the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, with regard to acceptance 
of deposits are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

vi.	 The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Act for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books of account:

	 a.	 During the year, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed 
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues as applicable to it. 
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There are no undisputed amounts in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and 
services tax, sales tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues 
in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable; and

	 b.	 There are no statutory dues referred to in clause (vii)(a) hereinabove which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute.

viii.	 In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management, 

we have neither come across nor have been informed of transactions which were previously not recorded in books of 

account and that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 

Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) and accordingly reporting under clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company.

ix.	 In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us by the management and based on our 

examination of the books of account of the Company:

	 a.	 During the year, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 

interest to any lender;

	 b.	 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lenders;

	 c.	 The Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans from bank during the year for the purposes for 

which they were obtained, other than temporary parking in current account for a few days at the end of the year, 

pending utilization towards purposes for which the same was obtained.

	 d.	  The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause 

(ix)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company; and

	 e.	 The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and accordingly, reporting under clauses (ix)

(e) and (ix)(f ) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

x.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books of account of the 

Company:

	 a.	 The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments) during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company; and

	 b.	 The Company has made preferential allotment of shares in accordance with the requirements of section 62 of the 

Act and funds raised in this respect have been utilized for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has 

not made any preferential allotment or private placement of convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally 

convertible) during the year.

xi.	 a.	 During the course of our examination of books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with 

generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanation given to us, we 

have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company noticed or reported during the 

year, nor have we been informed of any such cases by the management;

	 b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books and 

records of the Company, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act, has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 

prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, with 

the Central Government. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xi)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company; and
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	 c.	 According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the books of account 
of the Company, no whistle blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause (xi)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and 
accordingly the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.  Accordingly, reporting under clauses (xii)(a), (xii)(b) and (xii)
(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the provisions of sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

xiv.	 a.	 The Company has appointed a firm of Chartered Accountants to carry out the internal audit of the Company. In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the internal audit system is commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business; and

	 b.	 We have considered, during the course of our audit, the reports of the internal auditor for the year under audit, 
issued to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing, and extent of our audit 
procedures in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610 “Using the work of Internal Auditors”.

xv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the management and based 
on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, reporting under clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the management and based on 
our examination of the books and records of the Company:

	 a.	 The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the RBI Act and the Company has obtained the 
required registration;

	 b.	 The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial or housing finance activities without obtaining a valid 
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the RBI as per the RBI Act;

	 c.	 The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016, as amended from time to time, issued by the RBI. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company; and

	 d.	 Based on the representation received by us from the management, there is no Core Investment Company within the 
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting 
under clause (xvi)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii.	 Based on the examination of the books of accounts we report that the Company has not incurred cash losses during the  
financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.	There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) 
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates 
of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities (refer note no. 39 to the financial statements detailing 
the maturity analysis of assets and liabilities) and other information accompanying the financial statements, and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidences supporting 
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the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet 
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not 
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither given any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books and records of 
the Company there are no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility on either ongoing projects or other 
than ongoing projects as stated in section 135 of the Act and accordingly, reporting under clauses (xx)(a) and (xx)(b) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xxi.	 The reporting under clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company in the absence of any 
subsidiary, associate or joint venture.

				    For LODHA & CO

				    Chartered Accountants

				    Firm’s Registration No.: 301051E

				    Boman R Parakh

				    (Partner)

Place: Kolkata		 Membership No.: 053400

Date: May 12, 2023	 UDIN: 23053400BGSCMR1845
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ANNEXURE “B”
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in point (f) of paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our 
report of even date to the members of Jagaran Microfin Private Limited)

[Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”)]

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jagaran Microfin Private Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) as at March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of 

the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 

control with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (hereinafter 

referred to as “the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (hereinafter referred to as 

“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the financial 

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the 

Standards on Auditing notified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls. Those Standards on Auditing and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

the financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidences about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

with reference to the financial statements reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 

reference to the financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 

the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for external purposes 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to the 

financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
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detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only 

in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could 

have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 

may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the 

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial 

statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 

or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 

respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements and such internal financial controls 

with reference to the financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with 

reference to the financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India.

				    For LODHA & CO

				    Chartered Accountants

				    Firm’s Registration No.: 301051E

				    Boman R Parakh

				    (Partner)

Place: Kolkata		 Membership No.: 053400

Date: May 12, 2023	 UDIN: 23053400BGSCMR1845
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note 
no.

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

ASSETS

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4  2,133.33  3,055.61 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5  4,566.15  4,300.42 
Investment  -    -   
Trade receivables 6  68.57  -   
Loans 7  33,887.69  29,725.02 
Other financial assets 8  2,815.29  289.82 
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 9  217.36  155.53 
Deferred tax assets (net) 10  793.46  852.53 
Property, plant and equipment 11  38.51  66.20 
Other intangible assets 12  22.78  25.79 
Other non-financial assets 13  73.19  74.25 
TOTAL ASSETS  44,616.33  38,545.17 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
(I)  Trade payables

(i)    Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
(ii)   Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14  7.39  14.71 

Debt securities 15  1,929.31  4,304.74 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16  30,015.69  23,992.03 
Subordinated liabilities 17  500.42  500.42 
Other financial liabilities 18  1,725.49  219.09 
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 19  119.11  108.21 
Other non-financial liabilities 20  56.78  34.76 
EQUITY
Equity share capital 21  5,129.62  4,829.62 
Other equity 22  5,132.52  4,541.59 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  44,616.33  38,545.17

The accompanying notes 1-45 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For LODHA & CO	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 301051E

Boman R Parakh	 Tanusree Ghosh	 Aatreyee Majumder
Partner	 Company Secretary	 Whole Time Director
Membership No.: 053400 		  DIN: 08363766

	 Arun Gupta	 Sourav Ghosh
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director
		  DIN: 08154243
Place: Kolkata	 Place: Kolkata
Date: May 12, 2023	 Date: May 12, 2023
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes 1-45 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For LODHA & CO	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 301051E

Boman R Parakh	 Tanusree Ghosh	 Aatreyee Majumder
Partner	 Company Secretary	 Whole Time Director
Membership No.: 053400 		  DIN: 08363766

	 Arun Gupta	 Sourav Ghosh
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director
		  DIN: 08154243
Place: Kolkata	 Place: Kolkata
Date: May 12, 2023	 Date: May 12, 2023

Particulars Note 
no. 

For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Revenue from operations

Interest income 23  6,516.49  6,476.72 

Dividend income 24  52.36  28.10 

Fees and commission income 25  15.10  -   

Total revenue from operations  6,583.95  6,504.82 

Other income 26  407.61  2,233.89 

TOTAL INCOME  6,991.56  8,738.71 

Expenses

Finance costs 27  3,688.93  3,343.49 

Employee benefits expense 28  1,771.81  1,724.66 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 29  47.16  36.87 

Other expenses 30  1,126.90  3,119.69 

TOTAL EXPENSES  6,634.80  8,224.71 

Profit before tax  356.76  514.00 

Tax expense

(a)   Current tax  -    -   

(b)   Deferred tax 10  60.95  149.35 

Total tax expense  60.95  149.35 

Profit for the year  295.81  364.65 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i)   Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans  (6.76)  2.01 

(ii)  Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently
       to profit or loss

 1.88  (0.51)

Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (4.88)  1.50 

Total comprehensive income for the year (comprising profit and other 
comprehensive income for the year)

 290.93  366.15 

Earnings per equity share (Par value of ₹10/- each)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (₹) 33  0.58  0.76 
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended                   
March 31, 2022

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax  356.76  514.00 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense  47.16  36.87 

Dividend income  (52.36)  (28.10)

Interest income on deposits  (276.40)  (309.00)

Sundry assets written off  131.65  2,217.47 

Liabilities no longer required written back  (11.76)  (53.30)

Provision no longer required written back  (10.44)  (2,154.05)

Operating profit before working capital changes  184.61  223.89 

Adjustment for changes in operating assets & liabilities

Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:

Loans  (4,273.53)  2,294.93 

Trade receivables  (68.57)  -   

Other financial assets  (46.45)  1.78 

Other non-financial assets  1.06  (19.89)

Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Trade payables  4.44  (162.67)

Provisions  (16.89)  (9.14)

Other financial liabilities  1,503.87  9.70 

Other non-financial liabilities  22.02  (4.45)

Cash (used in)/ generated from operations  (2,689.44)  2,334.15 

Income tax paid  (61.83)  (437.54)

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities  (2,751.27)  1,896.61 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (13.93)  (7.11)

Purchase of investment in mutual fund  (21,437.14)  (12,311.08)

Sale of investment in mutual fund  21,437.14  12,311.08 

(Investment in)/redemption of deposits with banks & NBFCs (net)  (2,734.08)  1,225.18 

Interest received on deposits  276.41  308.11 

Dividend received  52.36  28.10 

Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities  (2,419.24)  1,554.28 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issue of share capital  600.00  -   

Proceeds from borrowings from banks and NBFCs  26,460.00  19,350.00 

Repayment of  borrowings to banks and NBFCs  (22,811.77)  (21,667.55)

Net cash  (used in)/ generated from financing activities  4,248.23  (2,317.55)

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents  (A+B+C)  (922.28)  1,133.34 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year (Refer note no. 4)  3,055.61  1,922.27 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of year  (Refer note no. 4)  2,133.33  3,055.61
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 (Contd.)
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Additional notes

1	 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 7 
“Statement of Cash Flows”.

2	 Cash and cash equivalents as at the balance sheet date consists of:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Cash on hand  8.32  36.67 

Balances with banks - in current accounts  1,922.08  3,018.94 

Balances with banks - in term deposits  202.93  -   

 2,133.33  3,055.61

3	 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022 Cash flows Non-cash items As at

March 31, 2023

Debt securities  4,304.74  (2,375.43)  -    1,929.31 

Borrowings (other than debt securities)  23,992.03  5,793.31  230.35  30,015.69 

Subordinated liabilities  500.42  -    -    500.42 

4	 Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the company except the balance with banks in term 
deposit which has lien against a term loan and the same has since been released in the month of April, 2023.

5	 Company has incurred ₹15.19 lakhs (previous year ₹48.29 lakhs) in cash on account of corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure.

6	 As breakup of cash and cash equivalents is also available in note no. 4, reconciliation of items of cash and cash equivalents as per cash 
flow statement with respective items reported in the balance sheet is not required and hence not provided.

The accompanying notes 1-45 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For LODHA & CO	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 301051E

Boman R Parakh	 Tanusree Ghosh	 Aatreyee Majumder
Partner	 Company Secretary	 Whole Time Director
Membership No.: 053400 		  DIN: 08363766

	 Arun Gupta	 Sourav Ghosh
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director
		  DIN: 08154243
Place: Kolkata	 Place: Kolkata
Date: May 12, 2023	 Date: May 12, 2023
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(A)	 Equity share capital

(B)	 Other equity

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Balance as at the beginning of the year  4,829.62  4,829.62 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  300.00  -   

Balance as at the end of the year  5,129.62  4,829.62

Particulars
Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive 

income 
 Total 

Securities 
premium 

Statutory 
reserves

Retained 
earnings 

Remeasurement of net 
defined benefit plans

As at March 31, 2022  855.13  1,205.62  2,480.84  -    4,541.59 

Proceeds from issue of share capital  300.00  -    -    300.00 

Profit for the year  -    -    295.81  -    295.81 

Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    (4.88)  (4.88)

Transfer to/ (from) retained earnings  -    (4.88)  4.88  -   

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    290.93  -    290.93 

Transferred to statutory reserve  -    59.16  (59.16)  -    -   

As at March 31, 2023  1,155.13  1,264.78  2,712.61  -    5,132.52 

As at March 31, 2021  855.13  1,132.69  2,187.62  -    4,175.44 

Profit for the year  -    -    364.65  -    364.65 

Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    1.50  1.50 

Transfer to/ (from) retained earnings  1.50  (1.50)  -   

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    366.15  -    366.15 

Transferred to statutory reserve  -    72.93  (72.93)  -    -   

As at March 31, 2022  855.13  1,205.62  2,480.84  -    4,541.59

The accompanying notes 1-45 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For LODHA & CO	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 301051E

Boman R Parakh	 Tanusree Ghosh	 Aatreyee Majumder
Partner	 Company Secretary	 Whole Time Director
Membership No.: 053400 		  DIN: 08363766

	 Arun Gupta	 Sourav Ghosh
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director
		  DIN: 08154243
Place: Kolkata	 Place: Kolkata
Date: May 12, 2023	 Date: May 12, 2023
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1.	 Corporate information

	 Jagaran Microfin Private Limited (‘the Company’) is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. 
The Company is registered as a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC-ND’) with the Reserve 
Bank of India (‘RBI’) and has got classified as a Non-Banking Financial Company – Micro Finance Institution (‘NBFC-
MFI’) with effect from September 27, 2013.

	 The Company is engaged primarily in providing micro finance services to women who are enrolled as members and 
organized as Joint Liability Groups (‘JLG’).

2.	 Basis of preparation

	 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND 
AS) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

	 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain items which are measured 
at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is 
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or services. The financial statements 
are presented in Indian Rupees (₹), except when otherwise indicated.

	 2.1.	 Presentation of financial statements

		  The company presents its Balance Sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding maturity of assets and 
liabilities within 12 months and more than 12 months after the reporting date is presented in Note No. 39.

		  The company prepares and presents its Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity in the format prescribed by Division III of Schedule III to the Act. The Cash Flow Statement 
has been prepared as per the requirements of IND AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The financial statements of 
the Company are prepared with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 under section 133 
of the Act and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter (“IND AS”).

		  The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as the Management is satisfied that the 
Company shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty 
exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern assumption. In making this assessment, the 
Management has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including 
future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

		  Accounting policies are consistently applied except where a newly issued IND AS initially adopted or a revision 
to an existing IND AS requires a change in the accounting policy.

		  The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet. 
They are offset and reported net only where IND AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event. 
Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis where permitted 
by IND AS specifically.

	 2.2.	 Presentation and functional currency

		  The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional and the presentation currency 
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs with two decimals, except when otherwise 
stated.
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	 2.3.	 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

		  The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and 
judgements. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of 
items, it is possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the 
Management’s estimates are based. Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in 
the financial statements, e.g.:

		  •	 Business model assessment (Refer Note no. 3.13)

		  •	 Effective interest rate (EIR) (Refer Note no. 3.1.2)

		  •	 Impairment of financial assets (Refer Note no. 3.14)

		  •	 Provisions (Refer Note no. 3.8)

		  •	 Contingent liabilities and assets (Refer Note no. 3.9)

		  •	 Provision for tax expenses (Refer note no. 3.11)

		  •	 Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment (Refer note no. 3.6.1)

	 2.4.	 Recent pronouncements

		  New and revised standards adopted by the company

		  Effective April 01, 2022, the company has adopted the amendments vide Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standard) Amendment Rules, 2022 notifying amendment to existing IND AS. These amendments to the 
extent relevant to the company’s operation were relating to IND AS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” 
which clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be 
recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of 
an item of property, plant, and equipment and IND AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets” which specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the 
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract 
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling 
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and 
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

		  There were other amendments in various standards including IND AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian 
Accounting Standards”, IND AS 103 “Business Combinations”, IND AS 109 “Financial Instruments”, and IND AS 
41 “Agriculture” which have not been listed herein above since these are not relevant to the company.

		  Revision in these standards did not have any material impact on the profit/loss and earning per share for the 
year.

		  Standards issued but not yet effective

		  On March 31, 2023, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has made certain amendments to existing IND AS vide 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2023. These amendments to the extent relevant 
to the company’s operation include amendment to IND AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” which 
requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting 
policies, IND AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” which has introduced 
a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and include amendments to help entities distinguish changes in 
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates . Further consequential amendments with respect 
to the concept of material accounting policies have also been made in IND AS 107 “Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures” and IND AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”.
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		  There are other amendments in various standards including IND AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian 
Accounting Standards”, IND AS 103 “Business Combinations, IND AS 109 “Financial Instruments “,  IND AS 115 
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, IND AS 12 “Income Taxes” which has narrowed the scope of the 
initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting 
temporary differences and IND AS 102 “Share-based Payment” which have not been listed herein above since 
these are not relevant to the company.

		  Even though the company will evaluate the impact of above, none of these amendments as such are vital in 
nature and are not likely to have material impact on the financial statements of the company.

3.	 Summary of significant accounting policies
	 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. 

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

	 3.1.	 Revenue recognition

		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonably certainty of its recovery.

	 3.1.1.	 Interest income

		  Interest income for all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and recorded using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) applicable. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or 
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross 
carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly 
attributable and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

		  The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets 
other than credit-impaired assets.

		  Interest on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is recognised in accordance with the           
contractual terms of the instrument.

		  Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

		  The Company recognizes gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realized gains 
on  derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI on net basis.

	 3.1.2.	 Other income

		  The company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers (other than Financial assets to which IND 
AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model as set out in 
IND AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. The company identifies contract(s) with a customer 
and its performance obligation under the contract, determines the transaction price and its allocation to 
the performance obligation in the contract and recognizes revenue only on satisfactory completion of 
performance obligation in the contract. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable.

		  Miscellaneous Income
		  Miscellaneous income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is 

recognized when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.
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	 3.2.	 Finance cost

		  Borrowing cost on financial liabilities are recognised by applying the EIR.

	 3.3.	 Cash and cash equivalents

		  Cash and cash equivalents, comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to insignificant risk of changes in value.

	 3.4.	 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) initial recognition and measurement:

		  PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises 
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended 
use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other 
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

	 3.5.	 Intangible assets

		  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any.

	 3.6.	 Depreciation and amortization

	 3.6.1.	 Depreciation

		  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is measured using the straight line method as per the useful 
lives of the assets estimated by the management. The useful life estimated by the management is as under:

Category of Asset Useful Life (Years)

Furniture and fittings 10

Office equipments 05

Vehicles 08

Computers (including Servers) 03

	 3.6.2.	 Amortization

		  Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The 
management has determined its estimate of useful economic life as five years. The useful lives of intangible 
assets are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted.

	 3.7.	 Impairment of non–financial assets

		  The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates 
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price 
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
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their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are 
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is 
used.

	 3.8.	 Provisions

		  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

	 3.9.	 Contingent liabilities and assets

		  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. Contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a 
liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise 
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

		  Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by IND AS 37, where an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

	 3.10.	 Retirement and other employee benefits

	 3.10.1.	Defined contribution plan

		  Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and superannuation are defined contribution schemes. 
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective funds. The Company 
recognises contribution payable to the respective funds as expenditure, when an employee renders the 
related service.

	 3.10.2.	Defined benefit plan

		  Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
projected unit credit method made at the end of each year. Gains or losses through remeasurements of net 
benefit liabilities/ assets are recognised with corresponding charge/credit to the retained earnings through 
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

	 3.10.3.	Other employee benefits

		  The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for 
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year. 
The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an 
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

		  Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term 
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that 
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
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	 3.11.	 Taxes

	 3.11.1.	Current income tax
		  Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 

paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current 
income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised outside the 
statement profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

	 3.11.2.	Deferred tax
		  Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

		  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

		  Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised outside the 
statement profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

		  Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

	 3.12.	 Earning per share
		  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid 
equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in 
dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting year.

		  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

	 3.13.	 Financial instruments

		  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity.

	 3.13.1.	Financial assets
		  3.13.1.1.	 Initial recognition and measurement

			   Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The classification of financial 
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instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the 
management’s intention when acquiring them. All financial assets (not measured subsequently 
at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that 
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that does not 
contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. 

		  3.13.1.2.	 Classification and subsequent measurement

			   For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

			   –	 Loans at amortised cost

			   –	 Loans at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

			   –	 Investments in debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL)

		  3.13.1.3.	 Loans at amortised costs

			   Loans are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

			   (a)	 Such loan is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and

			   (b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial 
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment.

				    Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit or loss. 
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

		  3.13.1.4.	 Investment in mutual funds at amortised cost

			   Investments in liquid mutual funds are measured at amortised cost and is classified as FVTPL by 
accounting for any gain/loss during the period.

	 3.13.2.	Financial liabilities

		  3.13.2.1.	 Initial recognition and measurement

			   Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability 
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as such on initial 
recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The company’s financial 
liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and 
derivative financial instruments, which are measured at amortised cost.

		  3.13.2.2.	 Borrowings

			   After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss.
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	 3.13.3.	Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

		  The company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the 
exceptional circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. 
Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

	 3.13.4	 De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

		  3.13.4.1	 De-recognition of financial assets

			   A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset 
have expired. The Company also de-recognises the financial asset if it has transferred the financial 
asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition.

			   The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

			   –	 It has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset Or

			   –	 It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

			   Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual 
rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the ‘original asset’), but assumes a contractual 
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the ‘eventual recipients’), when all of 
the following three conditions are met:

			   –	 The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has 
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with 
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

			   –	 The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual 
recipients.

			   –	 The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients 
without material delay.

		  	 In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in 
cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection 
date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients. A transfer only qualifies for 
de-recognition if either:

			   –	 The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or

			   –	 The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

			   The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical 
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability 
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. When the Company has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control 
of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’s continuing 
involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred 
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations 
that the Company has retained.
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			   On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between: (a) the carrying 
amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and (b) the consideration received (including 
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss account.

		  3.13.4.2	 De-recognition of financial liabilities

			   Financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled 
or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such 
an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the re-
cognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	 3.13.5	 Impairment of financial assets

		  3.13.5.1	 Overview of the expected credit loss (ECL) allowance principles

			   The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans at amortised cost 
and FVOCI and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL.

			   The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the 
lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk 
since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss 
(12mECL)).

			   The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a 
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

			   Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on a collective basis for identified homogenous pool of 
loans.

			   Accordingly, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below:

			   Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 
month ECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan 
has been reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

			   Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the company 
records an allowance for the LTECLs.

			   Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

			   For financial assets for which the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either 
the entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the 
financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial) de-recognition of the financial asset.

		  3.13.5.2	 The calculation of ECL

			   The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios and historical data to 
measure the expected cash shortfalls. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows 
that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity 
expects to receive.

			   ECL consists of three key components: Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and 
Loss Given Default (LGD). ECL is calculated by multiplying them. Refer Note 41.8 for calculation.
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	 		  The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial 
instrument.

			   The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

			   Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result 
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the 
reporting date. The Company calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of 
a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month 
default probabilities are applied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

			   Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company 
records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs 
and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument.

			   Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit 
losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

	 3.13.6	 Write-offs
		  Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped 

pursuing the recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the 
difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying 
amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

	 3.14	 Fair value measurement
		  The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation 

techniques. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the 
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the 
Company. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured are 
categorised with fair value hierachy into Level I, Level II and Level III based on level of input.

	 3.15	 Segment information
		  The Company operates in a single business segment, i.e., lending to members, having similar risks and returns 

for the purpose of IND AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’. The Company operates in a single geographical 
segment, i.e., domestic.

	 3.16	 Foreign currency
		  All transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the   

transaction.

		  Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the close of the period.

	 3.17	 Leases (where the company is the lessee)
		  The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Company 

recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in 
which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or 
less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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4	 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
Refer

note no. 
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Cash on hand 8.32 36.67

Balances with banks

In current accounts 1,922.08 3,018.94

In term deposits 4.1 202.93 -

 2,133.33  3,055.61

4.1	 Term deposits under lien against borrowings, which has since been settled in the month of April 2023, as at March 31, 
2023 ₹202.93 lakhs (Previous year: Nil)

5	 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
Refer 

note no. 
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Balances with banks and other financial institutions - In term 
deposit

5.1 & 5.2 4,566.15 4,300.42

4,566.15 4,300.42

5.1	 Term deposits under lien against borrowings as at March 31, 2023 ₹4,412.83 lakhs (previous year: ₹3,542.88 lakhs)

5.2	 Term deposit include ₹39.81 lakhs (Previous year: Nil) held as security with Business Correspondents for loan disbursed 
by them.							     

6	 Trade receivables (at amortised cost)

Particulars Refer 
note no. 

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good 68.57 -

68.57 -

6.1	 Trade receivables ageing schedule

	 As at March 31, 2023

Particulars
Current 
but not 

due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
TotalLess than 

6 months
6 months-

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 
3 years

Undisputed trade receivables

Considered good 68.57 - - - - - 68.57

68.57 - - - - - 68.57
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6.1	 Trade receivables ageing schedule (Contd.)

	 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars
Current 
but not 

due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
TotalLess than 

6 months
6 months-

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 
3 years

Undisputed trade receivables

Considered good - - - - - - -

- - - - - - -

6.2	 No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other 
person nor due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

6.3	 Details relating to the company’s credit risk management have been given in note no. 38.1

7	 Loans

Particulars
Refer 

note no. 
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Unsecured (at amortised cost)

Term loans 34,131.96 30,503.07

Add: interest accrued but not due on Loans 1,244.09 617.30

Less: processing fee income deferment (360.49) (193.54)

Total (gross) 35,015.56 30,926.83

Less: impairment loss allowance 41.8 (1,127.87) (1,201.81)

33,887.69 29,725.02

7.1	 Region wise details

Particulars
Refer

note no.
As at

March 31, 2023
As at

March 31, 2022

a) Loans in India

-   Public sector - -

-   Others 35,015.56 30,926.83

b) Loan outside India - -

Gross loans 35,015.56 30,926.83

Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,127.87) (1,201.81)

Net loans 33,887.69 29,725.02
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8	 Other financial assets							     

Particulars
Refer 

note no. 
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Interest accrued but not due on term deposit 0.88 0.89

Security deposits 81.31 80.53

Security deposits with non-banking financial companies 8.1 2,561.91 93.56

Advance to employees 3.59 5.29

Other receivables 8.2 167.60 109.55

Total 2,815.29 289.82

8.1	  Security deposits with non-banking financial companies are under lien against their respective borrowings.

8.2	 Other receivables	 						    

Particulars
Refer

note no.
As at

March 31, 2023
As at

March 31, 2022

Insurance premium receivable from members 107.81 101.3

Insurance claim receivable 0.82 0.31

Government grant receivables 8.3 41.82 -

Surplus in gratuity fund 37 10.68 -

Others 6.47 7.92

167.60 109.55

8.3	 The company is eligible to receive financial assistance from government authorities under National Apprenticeship 
Training Scheme (NATS) notified vide notice dated July 05, 2022. Under the said scheme, 50% of the prescribed rates 
of stipend paid to the apprentices can be claimed subject to conditions notified under the notice. Accordingly, ₹60.59 
lakhs (previous year: Nil) has been recognised as income under “Other income” during the year ended March 31, 2023.

9	 Current tax assets (net)

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022

Advance income tax (including TDS receivable) 2,008.16 1,946.33

Less: provision for taxation (1,790.80) (1,790.80)

217.36 155.53 
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10	 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars
Refer 

note no. 
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022
Tax effect on Items constituting deferred tax assets:
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 11.41 4.74
Financial assets at amortised cost 2.06 44.04
Provision for impairment loss allowance 336.35 284.65
Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 22.25 88.47
Carried forward losses 423.37 478.53
Total deferred tax assets 795.44 900.43
Tax effect on Items constituting deferred tax liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (1.98) (47.90)
Total deferred tax liabilities (1.98) (47.90)
Deferred tax assets (net) 793.46 852.53

10.1	 Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 
2022

Recognised
in profit or 

loss

Recognized 
in other 

comprehensive 
income

As at 
March 31, 

2023

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences on:
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 4.74 6.67 - 11.41
Financial assets at amortised cost 44.04 (41.98) - 2.06
Provision for impairment loss allowance 284.65 51.70 - 336.35
Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 88.47 (68.10) 1.88 22.25
Carried forward losses 478.53 (55.16) - 423.37
Total deferred tax assets 900.43 (106.87) 1.88 795.44
Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences on:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (47.90) 45.92 - (1.98)
Total deferred tax liabilities (47.90) 45.92 -  (1.98)
Deferred tax assets (net) 852.53 (60.95) 1.88 793.46

10.2	 Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 
2021

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognized 
in other 

comprehensive 
income

As at  
March 31, 

2022

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences on:
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets  4.34  0.40  -    4.74 
Financial assets at amortised cost  64.94  (20.90)  -    44.04 
Provision for impairment loss allowance  955.94  (671.29)  -    284.65 
Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961  23.83  65.15  (0.51)  88.47 
Carried forward loss  -    478.53  -    478.53 
Total deferred tax assets  1,049.05  (148.11)  (0.51)  900.43 
Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences on:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  (46.66)  (1.24)  -    (47.90)

Total deferred tax liabilities  (46.66)  (1.24)  -    (47.90)
Deferred tax assets (net)  1,002.39  (149.35)  (0.51)  852.53
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 11	 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Computer
Furniture and 

fixtures
Office 

equipment
Vehicles Total

Gross block
As at March 31, 2021 89.66 47.45 51.29 14.47 202.87
Additions 0.37 0.44 0.85 - 1.66
Disposal - -  - - -
Other adjustments - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 90.03 47.89 52.14 14.47 204.53
Additions 7.48 0.35 1.08 - 8.91
Disposal 0.69 - - - 0.69
Other Adjustments 0.17 0.78  (0.76) - 0.19
As at March 31, 2023  96.65 47.46 53.98 14.47 212.56
Accumulated depreciation
As at March 31, 2021 60.96 14.96 29.73 4.96 110.61
Charge for the year 12.87 4.67 8.31 1.87 27.72
Disposal/ Other adjustments - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 73.83 19.63 38.04 6.83 138.33
Charge for the year 9.04 16.53 8.95 1.87 36.39
Disposal/ Other adjustments 0.67 - - -  0.67
As at March 31, 2023 82.20 36.16 46.99 8.70 174.05
Net block
As at March 31, 2021 28.70 32.49 21.56 9.51 92.26
As at March 31, 2022 16.20 28.26 14.10 7.64 66.20
As at March 31, 2023 14.45 11.30 6.99 5.77 38.51

11.1 	Other adjustments represents reclassification of assets during the conduct of physical verification during the year.
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12 	 Other intangible assets				  

Particulars Computer software Total

Gross block

As at March 31, 2021  61.20  61.20 

Additions  5.45  5.45 

Disposal  -    -   

Other adjustments  -    -   

As at March 31, 2022  66.65  66.65 

Additions  10.33  10.33 

Disposal  5.73  5.73 

Other adjustments  (0.19)  (0.19)

As at March 31, 2023  71.44  71.44 

Accumulated amortisation

As at March 31, 2021  31.72  31.72 

Charge for the year  9.14  9.14 

Disposal/ Other adjustments  -    -   

As at March 31, 2022  40.86  40.86 

Charge for the year  10.77  10.77 

Disposal/ Other adjustments  2.97  2.97 

As at March 31, 2023  48.66  48.66 

Net block

As at March 31, 2021  29.48  29.48 

As at March 31, 2022  25.79  25.79 

As at March 31, 2023  22.78  22.78

12.1	 Other adjustments represents reclassification of assets during the conduct of physical verification of tangible assets 
during the year.

 13 	 Other non-financial assets					   

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

Advance to vendors  2.57  12.28 

Prepaid expenses  11.31  7.67 

Balance with government authorities  59.31  53.85 

Other advances  -    0.45 

Total  73.19  74.25
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14	 Trade payables

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Trade payables 14.1

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 
small enterprises

7.39 14.71

7.39 14.71

14.1	 Trade payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
Total

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and 
small enterprises (Undisputed)

- - - - -

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro and small enterprises 
(Undisputed)

7.39 - - - 7.39

(iii) Total outstanding dues of micro and 
small enterprises (Disputed)

- - - - -

(iv) Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro and small enterprises 
(Disputed)

- - - - -

	 Trade payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
Total

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and 
small enterprises (Undisputed)

- - - - -

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro and small enterprises 
(Undisputed)

 11.29  3.42  -    -    14.71 

(iii) Total outstanding dues of micro and 
small enterprises (Disputed)

- - - - -

(iv) Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro and small enterprises 
(Disputed)

- - - - -
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14.2	 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

	 The amount due to the Micro and Small Enterprise as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006” has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the 
information available with the Company. The disclosure relating to the Micro and Small Enterprise as at March 31, 2023 
are as under:

Description
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022
a. The Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at end of the year - -
b. Interest due as on remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the  year - -
c. Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which have been paid beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding Interest specified under the Act

- - 

d. Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of the year - - 
e. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in 

the succeeding year until such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

- -

15	 Debt securities

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022
At amortised cost
Non convertible debentures- listed (secured) 15.1 1,929.31 4,304.74

1,929.31 4,304.74

15.1	 Includes interest accrued ₹4.31 lakhs (Previous year: ₹104.74 lakhs)

15.2	 Redemption details of debt securities

Particulars
Last payment 

date
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022
12.7156% Microfinance Initiative Fund Asia October 23, 2023 1,929.31 2,279.86
13.0465% Blue Orchard Microfinance Fund October 29, 2022 - 1,013.24
13.0465% Japan Asean Women Empowerment Fund October 29, 2022 - 1,011.64

1,929.31 4,304.74

15.3	 Security details

	 The debenture is secured against the book debt of the company. The asset coverage required to be maintained at all 
the time during the tenure of the debenture is 105%.					   

15.4	 Repayment schedule

	 The debenture will be repaid through monthly instalment of ₹275.00 lakhs starting from the month of March, 2023.
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15.5	 In the month of March 2023, company with the consent of the debenture holder, Microfinance Initiative for Asia (MIFA) 
Debt Fund SA, SICAV- SIF, had changed the repayment schedule from the bullet repayment to be made on December 
23, 2024 to monthly instalments ending in October 23, 2023. The applicable interest rate was also changed from 13% 
to 12.7156%.

15.6	 Region wise details

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022 

a) Loans in India - -

b) Loans outside India 1,929.31 4,304.74

Total debt securities 1,929.31  4,304.74

16	 Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Particulars
Refer

note no.
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

At amortised cost

Term loans (Secured)

From banks 16.2 & 16.4 18,265.40 22,548.42

From non banking financial companies 16.3 & 16.4 12,264.07 1,727.04

Sub Total 30,529.47 24,275.46

Less: Processing fees deferment (513.78) (283.43)

30,015.69 23,992.03

16.1	 Region wise details

Particulars
Refer

note no.
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

a) Term loans in India 30,529.47 24,275.46

b) Term loans outside India - -

Gross Loans 30,529.47 24,275.46

Less: Processing fees deferment (513.78) (283.43)

Net Loans 30,015.69 23,992.03
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16.4	 Details of security given for the loan

a.	 Standard book debts of the company to the extent of 110% of outstanding loan. Collaterally secured with 10% of loan amount 
by way of term deposit along with interest accrued on it and corporate guarantee by M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited.

b.	 Exclusive charge by way of Hypothecation of standard receivables of the company to the extent of 1.10 times of out-
standing loan.

c.	 Exclusive charge by way of Hypothecation of book debts with 10% margin. Collaterally secured with 10% of loan 
amount by way of term deposit with IDBI bank along with interest accrued on it. Post dated cheques (2PDC).

d.	 Hypothecation of standard book debts created out of bank finance to the extent of 111% of prime Security. Collaterally 
secured with Fixed deposit to the tune of 18% of sanctioned limit.

e.	 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of standard loan receivables (other than specifically charged) of the compa-
ny to the extent of 111% of outstanding loans. Corporate Guarantee of M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited and personal 
guarantee of one of the Directors. Further a 18% of the total credit facilities sanctioned in the form of lien marked term 
deposits with the bank.

f.	 An exclusive and first ranking (floating) charge by way of hypothecation over the receivables. A demand promissory 
note and a letter of community. 75% of sanctioned amount guaranteed by NCGTC under CGSMFI. 25% of sanctioned 
amount guaranteed by holding company M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited 5% of the total credit facilities sanctioned in 
the form of lien marked term deposits with the bank.

g.	 Exclusive charge by way of Hypothecation of standard receivables of the company to the extent of 1.10 times of out-
standing loan. NCGTC guarantee of 75% of loan amount  and corporate guarantee of M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited.

h.	 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of standard loan receivables (other than specifically charged) of the compa-
ny to the extent of 110% of outstanding loans. Collaterally secured with 10% - 20% of the loan amount by way of term 
deposit along with the interest accrued thereon.

i.	 Book debts created out of the term loan availed. Collaterally secured with 10% of the term loan limit. Third party guar-
antee by M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited.

j.	 Hypothecation of book debts. Collateral security of bank deposits of ₹776 lakhs. Guarantee by holding company M/s 
GTFS Multi Services Limited.

k.	 Personal guarantees of promoter directors to be released after 1 year if PAR improved to 5%. Hypothecation of book 
debts. Collateral security of bank deposits of ₹850 lakhs. Guarantee by holding company M/s GTFS Multi Services Lim-
ited.

l.	 Exclusive charge on specific Current assets created out of UCO Bank Finance. Exclusive lien over 20% of the term loan 
as term deposits. Corporate guarantee by M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited.

m.	 Exclusive charge on specific receivables created out of UCO Bank Finance, should be exclusively hypothecated to UCO 
Bank. Security cover should be minimum 120% of the exposure at any time. Exclusive lien over 10% of the entire loan 
amount as cash collateral i.e. ₹75 lakhs before disbursement and to be continued till repayment as Collateral. Corporate 
Guarantee of M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited.

n.	 First and Exclusive charge of present and future loan receivables (Net of NPA / Overdue receivables, Financial Charges, 
Other charges, etc.) with 1.10 times of exposure created out of our funding. Cash Collateral of 10% on sanctioned limit 
by way FD kept under lien with ESAF SFB. Corporate Guarantee of M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited. Cheques towards 
the loan amount to cover the instalments.

o.	 Exclusive hypothecation of book debts to the extent of min 1.10 times of loan principal outstanding. Corporate guar-



Jagaran Annual Report 22-23 94

JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16.4	 Details of security given for the loan (Contd.)

antee of M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited.

p.	 Book debts (Standard loans receivables hypothecated exclusively to our bank against TL Facility). Proposed FDR (20% 
of fresh TL) as collateral.

q.	 Exclusive charge by the way of hypothecation of book debts arising out of the Facility shall be created in favour of ICICI 
Bank. The hypothecated assets must cover at least 110% of the amount outstanding under the Facility. GTFS Multi Ser-
vices Limited, a majority shareholders in the Borrower shall be providing a Corporate Guarantee in favour of ICICI Bank 
to secure the Facility.

r.	 Exclusive charge on receivables covering 110% of the outstanding loan amount at any point of time. Issue of Three 
undated cheques of the company for the outstanding loan amount. Issue of six post-dated cheques of the company 
for the repayment of 1st 6 instalment and submission of 4 copies of NACH for the repayment of instalment. 10% of the 
Loan Amount shall be placed as a security deposit for the full tenure of the loan.

s.	 First and exclusive charge of microfinance loan portfolio (book debts) and future receivables therein by way of hypoth-
ecation to the extent of 110% of loan outstanding on a continuing basis. Only standard assets will be considered for 
arriving at the value of underlying pool of assets.

t.	 First and exclusive charge of microfinance loan portfolio (book debts) and future receivables therein by way of hypoth-
ecation to the extent of 110% of loan outstanding and interest accrued on a continuing basis. Only standard assets will 
be considered for arriving at the value of underlying pool of assets. The borrower shall deposit with the lender duly 
discharged term deposit receipts for an amount equivalent to 5% -10% of the loan amount disbursed for the tenure of 
this facility.

u.	 First and exclusive charge of microfinance loan portfolio (book debts) and future receivables therein by way of hypoth-
ecation to the extent of 100% of loan outstanding on a continuing basis. Only standard assets will be considered for 
arriving at the value of underlying pool of assets.

v.	 5% security Deposit in form of FLDG. Hypothecation on all book debts arising out the loan from this facility.	

w.	 Enforceable promissory notes covering 100% of total amount of capital and interest outstanding at all times. Hypothe-
cation of book debts of borrowers on portfolio of grade A loans with a constant value of minimum 105% of outstanding 
amount plus Interest having first rank and exclusive charge. Interest free FLDG of ₹75 lakhs.

x.	 Hypothecation of specific standard receivables maintaining a security cover of 1.10 times as Primary Security. 5% of 
sanctioned amt as cash collateral in the form of FD marked lien and Corporate Guarantee of M/s GTFS Multi Services 
Limited.

y.	 First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over all the receivables of the borrower and such other assets for 
the security cover to the extent of 110% for the loan outstanding. The security cover must always be maintained so 
long as any amounts are outstanding under the facility. 20% of Loan amount to be maintained with SSBCPL as cash 
collateral carrying 4% interest throughout the tenure of the loan and payable at the end of the tenure of the loan. Such 
amount shall be deducted upfront from the disbursement amount. 

z.	 Hypothecation of 100% of book debts and cash collateral of ₹15 lakhs.

aa.	 Hypothecation on book debts (exclusive charge) to the extent of 110% if the exposure created by using UFSL fund and 
Book debts having par more than 30 days need to be replaced. 10% of Loan amount with 7% interest as cash collateral.

ab.	 First and exclusive charge on identified receivables (PAR < 30day). Minimum security cover of 1.2x to be maintained at 
all times. Corporate guarantee of M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited. DSRA deposit equivalent to one instalment with 4% 
interest.
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16.4	 Details of security given for the loan (Contd.)

ac.	 Hypothecation over all the receivables of the borrowers and other assets for security cover to extent of 120% of total 
loan outstanding. Security deposit of 20% of loan to be maintained throughout the tenure of the loan.

ad.	 First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over all the receivables of the borrower to the extent of 120% for 
outstanding loan (0 DPD loans). 20% of Loan Amount to be maintained with SSBCPL (4% p.a. interest payable at the 
end of term).

ae.	 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the specific assets/book debts equal to 110% of the loan extended. 5% 
collateral as FD marked as lien. Corporate guarantee of M/s GTFS Multi Services Limited.

af.	 Security of bank deposits amounting to ₹406.11 lakhs								      

17	 Subordinated liabilities

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Unsecured (at amortised cost)

Subordinated debt (Tier II capital) 17.1  500.42  500.42

500.42 500.42

17.1	 Subordinated Debt have a tenure of 72 months and carries rate of interest at 17.00% and are repayable in two equal 
instalments at end of 5.5 years and 6 years from the date of disbursement, i.e., September 30, 2019.

17.2	 Region wise details

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

a)  Term loans in India 500.42 500.42

b) Term loans outside India - -

Total subordinated liabilities 500.42 500.42

18	 Other financial liabilities	

Particulars
Refer

note no. 
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022
Employee related liabilities 179.51  167.83
Liabilities for capital goods

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises
2.53  -

Insurance premium payable on behalf of members 46.68 30.42
Payable to business correspondents 18.1 1,466.66 - 
Outstanding liability for expenses 30.11 20.84

1,725.49 219.09

18.1	 Includes ₹1,463.67 lakhs (Previous year: Nil) collected on behalf of  “Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited” 
and paid in next 2 working days after the reporting date.
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19	 Provisions

Particulars
Refer

note no. 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022

Contingent provision against standard assets 81.15 70.80

Provision for compensated absence 37.96 37.31

Provision for gratuity 37 - 0.10

119.11 108.21

20	 Other non-financial liabilities

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Statutory dues 56.78 34.76

56.78 34.76

 21	 Equity share capital

Particulars
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Number Amount Number Amount

Authorized share capital

Equity shares of ₹10 each 7,50,00,000 7,500.00 7,50,00,000 7,500.00

7,50,00,000 7,500.00 7,50,00,000 7,500.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up

Equity shares of ₹10 each 5,12,96,200 5,129.62 4,82,96,200 4,829.62

5,12,96,200 5,129.62 4,82,96,200 4,829.62

21.1	 Reconciliation of shares outstanding  at the beginning and at the end of the period

Particulars
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Number Amount Number Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,82,96,200 4,829.62 4,82,96,200 4,829.62

Add: Issued during the year 30,00,000 300 - -

Balance at the end of the period 5,12,96,200 5,129.62 4,82,96,200 4,829.62

 21.2 	Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

	 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of  ₹10. Such holder of equity share is entitled to one 
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees which are approved in the ensuing annual 
general meeting. The holder of equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. In the event 
of liquidation, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of 
all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholdings. 
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21.3 	Shares held by the holding company

Particulars
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

GTFS Multi Services Limited  3,48,15,600 67.87%  3,48,15,600 72.09%

21.4	 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the  Company:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Name of the shareholders Number % of holding Number % of holding
(a) GTFS Multi Services Limited 3,48,15,600 67.87% 3,48,15,600 72.09%
(b) Ms. Abira Majumder 47,37,900 9.24% 37,10,400 7.68%
(c) Ms. Aatreyee Majumder 40,00,000 7.80% 30,00,000 6.21%
(d) Mr. Adipta Majumder 40,00,000 7.80% 30,00,000 6.21%

21.5	 Details of shares held by promoters at the beginning and at the end of the year 2023

Name of the promoter
No. of shares at 
the beginning 

of the year

Change 
during 

the year

No. of shares 
at the end 
of the year

% of Total 
shares

% change 
during 

the year

Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of ₹10 each:
(a) GTFS Multi Services Limited  3,48,15,600  -    3,48,15,600 67.87% -4.22%
(b) Ms. Abira Majumder  37,10,400  10,27,500  47,37,900 9.24% 1.55%
(c) Ms. Aatreyee Majumder  30,00,000  10,00,000  40,00,000 7.80% 1.59%
(d) Mr. Adipta Majumder  30,00,000  10,00,000  40,00,000 7.80% 1.59%

	 Details of shares held by promoters at the beginning and at the end of the year 2022

Name of the promoter
No. of shares at 
the beginning 

of the year

Change 
during 

the year

No. of shares 
at the end 
of the year

% of Total 
shares

% change 
during 

the year

Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of ₹10 each:
(a)     GTFS Multi Services Limited  3,48,15,600  -    3,48,15,600 72.09%  -   
(b)     Ms. Abira Majumder  36,95,000  15,400  37,10,400 7.68% 0.03%
(c)      Ms. Aatreyee Majumder  30,00,000  -    30,00,000 6.21%  -   

(d)     Mr. Adipta Majumder  30,00,000  -    30,00,000 6.21% -

21.6	 No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ 
disinvestment as at the balance sheet date.

21.7	 The company has neither allotted any equity shares against consideration other than cash nor has issued any bonus shares 
or has bought back any shares during the period of 5 years preceding the date at which the balance sheet is prepared.

21.8	 No securities convertible into equity/preference shares have been issued by the company during the year.

21.9	 No calls remain unpaid by any director or officer of the company during the year.

21.10	No shares have been forfeited by the company.
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 22 	 Other equity

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Securities premium 22.1

Opening balance  855.13 855.13

Add: Received on Issue of equity shares for the year 300.00 -

Closing balance 1,155.13 855.13

Statutory reserve 22.2

Opening balance 1,205.62 1,132.69

Add: Transferred from retained earnings 59.16 72.93

Closing balance 1,264.78 1,205.62

Retained earnings 22.3

Opening balance 2,480.84 2,187.62

Add: Profit for the year 295.81 364.65

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (4.88) 1.50

Less: Amount transferred to statutory reserve (59.16) (72.93)

Closing balance 2,712.61 2,480.84

5,132.52 4,541.59 

	 Nature and purpose of reserves:

22.1	 Securities premium

	 Securities premium represents amount received in excess of the face value of the issued share capital. The same shall 
be utilised in accordance with the provisions of  the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules.

22.2 	Statutory reserve

	 Statutory reserves represents the reserve created pursuant to the section 45-IC of The Reserve Bank of India, 1934 (the 
RBI Act) and related regulations applicable to the companies governed by Reserve Bank of India. Under the RBI Act, a 
non-banking finance company is required to transfer an amount not less than 20% of its net profit after tax to a reserve 
fund before declaring any dividend. Appropriation from this reserve fund is permitted only for the purposes specified 
by the Reserve Bank of India.

22.3 	Retained earnings

	 Retained earnings generally represents the undistributed profits/amount of accumulated earnings of the Company. 
This includes other comprehensive income of ₹11.51 lakhs (Previous year ₹6.63 lakhs) relating to remeasurement of 
defined benefit plans (net of tax) which cannot be reclassified to profit or loss.
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23	 Interest income

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
On Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans 6,240.09 6,167.72
Interest on deposits 276.40 309.00

6,516.49 6,476.72 

24	 Dividend income

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
Dividend income 52.36 28.10

52.36 28.10

25	 Fees & commission income

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
Fees & commission income 15.10 -

15.10 -

26	 Other income

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
Government grants 60.59 -
Branding and advertisement 174.00 -
Provision no longer required written back 10.44 2,154.05
Interest income on income tax refund - 11.17
Bad debt recovery 148.70 6.83
Miscellaneous income 26.1 13.88 61.84

407.61 2,233.89

	 Includes liabilities no longer required written back ₹11.76 lakhs (Previous year ₹53.30 lakhs).

27	 Finance costs

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
Interest on borrowings 3,114.68 2,504.58
Interest on debt securities 450.49 718.30
Interest on subordinated liabilities 85.00 84.98
Other borrowing cost 38.76 35.63

3,688.93 3,343.49
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28

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages 1,577.20 1,536.03
Contribution to provident and other funds 37 147.82 147.72

46.79 40.91
1,771.81 1,724.66

29 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars
Refer 

note no. 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 36.39 27.73
Amortisation of intangible assets 10.77 9.14

47.16 36.87

30 Other expenses

Particulars
Refer 

note no. 
For the year ended

March 31, 2023
For the year ended

March 31, 2022
Electricity charges 29.05 22.23
Rent 30.1 372.17 360.40
Repairs & maintenance 13.42 12.84
Software maintenance 13.31 12.90
Director sitting fees 18.95 13.00
Printing & stationery 28.17 25.10
Telephone expenses 52.36 51.83
Travelling expenses 206.04 204.11
Membership fees 12.92 10.32
Professional & consultancy charges 88.47 39.02
Statutory auditors’ remuneration

-   For statutory audit 13.20 12.00
-   For limited review 7.95 4.50

1.36 5.19
-   Reimbursement of expenses 1.77 2.27

Corporate social responsibility (‘CSR’) Expenses 34 15.19 48.29
Training expenses 8.40 6.22
Rates & taxes 9.29 4.82
Internal audit fees 13.95 9.07
Security & contractual manpower expenses 5.82 4.41
Insurance premium paid 15.07 16.57

201.60 2,509.21
Less: Provision for impairment loss allowance (53.15) (291.74)

Miscellaneous expenses 51.59 37.13
1,126.90 3,119.69
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30	 The Company has taken certain office premises under cancellable operating lease arrangements which generally, 
range between 11 months to 3 years, and are usually renewable by mutual agreement. The Company has availed the 
benefit of short term lease exemption under IND AS 116 and charged off the lease payments to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

31	 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars
Refer 

note no. 
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Contingent liabilities Nil Nil 

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for:

 Nil Nil 

32	 Related party disclosure			 

	 Related party disclosure as identified by the management in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard 
(IND AS)- 24 on “Related Party Disclosure” are as follows:

32.1	 Name of the related parties and description of relationship with whom transactions have taken place:

Name Relationship

GTFS Multi Services Limited Holding Company

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Dipankar Chatterji Non-Executive Chairman

Mr. Sourav Ghosh Managing Director

Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh Whole Time Director and CEO

Ms. Aatreyee Majumder Whole Time Director

Mr. Sandip Das Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 

Mr. Rana Som Nominee Director (Up to September 20, 2021)

Mr. Rana Som Independent Director (w.e.f. September 28, 2021)

Mr. Subrata Gupta Independent Director

Ms. Shanta Ghosh Independent Director (Up to February 8, 2023)

Mr. Sandip Ghose Director (Up to July 15, 2022)

Mr. Samir Kumar Barua Director (Up to July 14, 2022)

Mr. Pratip Choudhari Director (Up to w.e.f. March 4, 2022)

Other Related Parties

Mr. Bhabesh Majumder Father of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder

Ms. Sona Majumder Mother of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder

Ms. Abira Majumder Individual having significant influence

Mr. Adipta Majumder Individual having significant influence
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32.2	  Transaction with related parties 			 

Particulars Holding company Key Managerial Personnel Other Related Parties

Rent and maintenance charges

–  GTFS Multi Services Limited
 221.42  -    -   

 (218.50)  (-)  (-) 

–  Mr. Bhabesh Majumder
 -    -    3.25 

 (-)  (-)  (3.36)

Remuneration

–  Mr. Sourav Ghosh
 -    39.50  -   

 (-)  (38.94)  (-) 

–  Ms. Aatreyee Majumder
 -    36.74  -   

 (-)  (35.92)  (-) 

–  Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh
 -    36.74  -   

 (-)  (35.92)  (-) 

Sitting fees

–  Mr. Samir Kumar Barua
 -    -    -   

 (-)  (0.16)  (-) 

–  Ms. Shanta Ghosh
 -    0.65  -   

 (-)  (2.62)  (-) 

–  Mr. Pratip Choudhari
 -    -  -   

 (-)  (1.91)  (-) 

–  Mr. Dipankar Chatterji
 -    6.00  -   

 (-)  (5.34)  (-) 

–  Mr. Sandip Ghose
 -    -    -   

 (-)  (0.16)  (-) 

–  Mr. Rana Som
 -    4.80  -   

 (-)  (3.98)  (-) 

–  Mr. Subrata Gupta
 -    3.45  -   

 (-)  -  (-) 

–  Mr. Sandip Das
 -    4.05  -   

 (-)  -  (-)

	 #  Numbers in brackets represent previous year’s figures	
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32.3	 Balance outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

Particulars Holding company Key Managerial Personnel Other Related Parties
Remuneration payable

–  Mr. Sourav Ghosh
 -    1.82  -   

 (-)  (1.37)  (-) 

–  Ms. Aatreyee Majumder
 -    2.99  -   

 (-)  (2.16)  (-) 

–  Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh
 -    2.31  -   

 (-)  (0.76)  (-) 
Equity share capital

–  GTFS Multi Services Private Limited
 3,481.56  -    -   

 (3,481.56)  (-)  (-) 

–  Ms. Aatreyee Majumder
 -    400.00  -   

 (-)  (300.00)  (-) 

–  Ms. Abira Majumder
 -    -    473.79 

 (-)  (-)  (371.04)

–  Mr. Adipta Majumder
 -    -    400.00 

 (-)  (-)  (300.00)

–  Ms. Sona Majumder
 -    -    160.01 

 (-)  (-)  (160.01)

Security Deposit for Rent
 69.76  -    -   

 (69.76)  (-)  (-) 

	 # Numbers in brackets represent previous year’s figures	

32.4	 Details of remuneration paid/ payable to Key Managerial Personnel for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars  Mr. Sourav Ghosh  Ms. Aatreyee Majumder  Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh 
Short term employee benefits

–  Basic salary  18.46  17.16  17.16 
–  House rent and other allowances  18.82  17.52  17.52 

Post employment benefits
–  Contribution to provident fund  2.22  2.06  2.06

Total remuneration  39.50  36.74  36.74

	 Details of remuneration paid/ payable to Key Managerial Personnel for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars  Mr. Sourav Ghosh  Ms. Aatreyee Majumder  Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh 
Short term employee benefits

–  Basic salary  17.86  16.40  16.40 
–  House rent and other allowances  18.94  17.55  17.55 

Post employment benefits
–  Contribution to provident fund  2.14  1.97  1.97

Total remuneration  38.94  35.92  35.92

	 * Post employment benefits contribution does not include contribution towards gratuity for the individual KMPs as the 
individual data for the same is not available and the same is provided for based on actuarial valuation.

32.5	 The transactions with related parties have been entered at an amount which are not materially different from those on 
normal commercial terms. 
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33	 Earnings per share

Particulars
Refer 

note no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
(a) Amount used as the numerator

Profit for the year available to equity shareholders (₹)  295.81  364.65 
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

used as the denominator for computing basic and 
diluted earnings per share

33.1  5,01,61,953  4,82,96,200 

Par value per equity Share (₹)  10.00  10.00 
Basic and diluted earnings per Share (₹) [a/b]  0.58  0.76

33.1	 The company does not have any dilutive potential equity share.	

34	 Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure			 

	 In accordance to Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company has incurred ₹15.19 lakhs (Previous year: ₹48.29 
lakhs) as CSR expenditure. Under the CSR activities, the Company has arranged free skill development training for 
women, free medical camp, free primary school training, financial literacy programme, merit scholarship, free coaching 
centre and other social security programmes.

34.1	 Details of CSR expenditure

Sl 
No.

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
(i) Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 20.32 42.49
(ii) Amount spent during the year 

a) Construction/ acquisition of any asset
–   in cash - -
–   yet to be paid in cash  - -   

b) On purpose other than (a) above
–   in cash 15.19 48.29
–   yet to be paid in cash - - 

(iii) Previous year excess spent adjusted with current year 
requirement to be spent

5.13 - 

(iv) Unspent amount during the year - - 
(v) Reason for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable

34.2	 Details of excess amount spent

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 
Opening balance  5.80  -   
Amount required to be spent during the year 20.32  42.49 
Amount spent during the year  15.19  48.29 
Closing balance

–  To be carried forward for next year  0.67  5.80 
–  Not to be carried forward for next year  -    -
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35	 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

Brief description of charge or satisfaction
Location of 

the registrar

The period by which the 
charge or satisfaction 
had to be registered

Reason for delay 
in registration

CSB-TL Agst FD (0161-04564259-100201-1) ROC- Kolkata March 29, 2023
It is a collaboration loan 
against fixed deposit and 
charge is not required to 
be filed; moreover loan 
has been settled in first 
week of April 2023.

CSB-TL Agst FD (0161-04564259-100202-1) ROC- Kolkata March 29, 2023

MAS Financial Services Ltd._TL-58A & 58B ROC- Kolkata November 06, 2022
There is some tax related 
dispute, regarding which 
follow-up is going on. 
This will be settled soon.

MAS Financial Services Ltd._TL-58A & 58B ROC- Kolkata November 06, 2022

Eclear Leasing and Finance Pvt Ltd ROC- Kolkata July 31, 2022
Follow-up is going on 
and this will be settled 
soon.

UCO T/L No. 00690610006115 ROC- Kolkata August 17, 2020
NOC already provided 
but due to change 
in address of the 
Company; revised NOC 
for CHG-4 is needed.

Electronica Finance Ltd. ROC- Kolkata May 01, 2022

36	 Based on information available with the company from the website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the company, 
neither had any transaction during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 with companies, which have 
been struck off by the Registrar of Companies, nor any balance is outstanding from such companies as at the end of 
reporting years.			 

37	 Employee benefits

37.1	 Defined Contribution Plan:

	 The Company makes contributions for eligible employees to provident fund and employee state insurance fund. Under 
these schemes, the company is required to contribute a specified percentage/fixed amount of the payroll cost to fund 
the benefits. The contribution, as specified under the law, is paid to the respective fund set up by the government 
authority and is limited to the amount contributed and the company has no further contractual nor any constructive 
obligation.

Defined Contribution Plan
For the year ended

March 31, 2023
For the year ended

March 31, 2022

Contribution to Provident Fund 92.31 91.28

Contribution to Employee State Insurance 33.30 33.71

Contribution to Gratuity 22.21 20.73
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37.2	 Defined benefit plan
	 The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the 

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once 
vested, it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, 
the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The Company makes annual contribution to the group gratuity scheme 
administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

a	 Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

	 The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined 
benefit liability/assets and its components:

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Obligation at the beginning of the year  105.60  92.23 
Current service cost  23.11  22.13 
Interest cost  6.99  6.28 
Past service cost  -    -   
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income
–  Changes in experience adjustments  6.64  6.63 
–  Changes in financial assumptions  (0.75)  (10.19)
Benefits settled  (19.41)  (11.48)
Obligation at the end of the year  122.18  105.60 
Reconciliation of present value of plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value  105.50  81.36 
Interest income on plan assets  7.69  5.86 
Re-measurement- actuarial gain  -    (0.60)
Return on plan assets  (0.87)  (1.55)
Employer contributions  39.95  31.91 
Benefits settled  (19.41)  (11.48)
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value  132.86  105.50 
Net defined benefit liability  (10.68)  0.10

b	 Expense recognised in profit or loss

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
Current service cost  23.11  22.13 
Interest cost  6.99  6.28 
Net gratuity cost  30.10  28.41

c	 Income recognised in profit or loss				  

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022

Interest income 7.69 5.86

Net gratuity income 7.69 5.86
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37.2	 Defined benefit plan (Contd.)				  

d	 Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability

–  Changes in experience adjustments  (0.75)  (10.19)

–  Changes in financial assumptions  6.64  6.63 

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit asset

Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate  0.87  1.55 

Total actuarial (gain)/loss included in OCI  6.76  (2.01)

e	 Plan assets

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Funds managed by insurer 100% 100%

f	 Defined benefit obligation - actuarial assumptions

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Discount rate 7.29% 7.26%

Expected return on plan asset 7.29% 7.26%

Rate of compensation increase (salary inflation) 6.00% 6.00%

Early retirement & disablement (all causes combined) 1.00% 1.00%

g	 Sensitivity analysis

	 Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other 
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2023 

Increase % Decrease %
Discount rate (+/- 0.5%) 110.52 -9.55% 135.41 10.82%
Future salary growth (+/- 0.5%) 135.15 10.61% 110.39 -9.65%
Attrition rate (+/- 0.5%) 122.13 -0.05% 122.24 0.05%
Mortality rate (+/- 10%) 122.27 0.07% 122.10 -0.07%

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022

Increase % Decrease %
Discount rate (+/- 100 basis points) 95.09 -9.95% 117.56 11.32%
Future salary growth (+/- 100 basis points) 117.59 11.36% 94.98 -10.06%
Attrition rate (+/- 100 basis points) 105.51 -0.09% 105.70 0.09%
Mortality rate (+/- 100 basis points) 105.68 0.08% 105.52 -0.08%



Jagaran Annual Report 22-23 108

JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37.2	 Defined benefit plan (Contd.)				  

h	 Table showing cash flow information

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Next year liability (expected) 158.56 139.76

Minimum funding requirements 17.00 27.43

Company’s discretion - - 

i	 Table showing maturity analysis of the defined benefit plan

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Year 1 0.95 0.80

Year 2 0.99 0.87

Year 3 1.08 0.92

Year 4 2.11 1.00

Year 5 and above 685.22 625.95

Total undiscounted payments related to past service 690.35 0.01

Less: Discount for interest 568.17 523.93

Projected benefit obligation 122.19 (0.01)

38	 Risk management and impairment allowance

	 Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business and sound risk management is critical to its success. As a financial 
intermediary, the Company is exposed to risks that are particular to its lending and the environment within which it 
operates and primarily includes credit, liquidity and market risks. The Company has a risk management policy which 
covers risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities. The risk management policy is approved by the Risk 
Management Committee and the Board of Directors.

	 The Company has identified and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor and manage 
risk throughout the Company. The risk management process is continuously reviewed, improved and adapted in the 
context of changing risk scenario and the agility of the risk management process is monitored and reviewed for its 
appropriateness in the changing risk landscape. The process of continuous evaluation of risks includes taking stock of 
the risk landscape on an event-driven basis.

	 The Company has an elaborate process for risk management. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are 
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

38.1	 Credit risk

	 The Company is a rural focused NBFC-MFI with a geographically diversified presence in India and offers income 
generation loans under the joint liability group model, predominantly to women from low-income households in 
rural areas. Further, as we focus on providing micro-loans in rural areas, our results of operations are affected by the 
performance and the future growth potential of microfinance in rural India. Our clients typically have limited sources 
of income, savings and credit histories and our loans are typically provided free of collateral. Such clients generally 
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do not have a high level of financial resilience, and, as a result, they can be adversely affected by declining economic 
conditions and natural calamities. In addition, we rely on non-traditional guarantee mechanisms rather than tangible 
assets as collateral, which may not be effective in recovering the value of our loans.

	 In order to mitigate the impact of credit risk in the future profitability, the Company creates impairment loss allowance 
basis the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the outstanding loans as at balance sheet date.

	 The below discussion describes the Company’s approach for assessing impairment as stated in note 3.14 of the 
significant accounting policies.

	 A)	 Probability of default (PD)

		  The Company determines PD on a collective basis. The Company uses historical information of its loan portfolio to 
estimate PD.

		  In determining the above PDs, an effort is made to eliminate outliers for a particular observation period which 
is not likely to happen in future. Accordingly, the Company determines PD depending upon the underlying 
classification of asset (i.e. Stage I or Stage II).

	 B)	 Exposure at default (EAD)

		  The outstanding balances as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the Company.

	 C)	 Loss given default

		  The Company determines its expectation of lifetime loss by estimating recoveries towards its entire loan portfolio 
through analysis of historical information. The Company determines its recovery rates by analysing the recovery 
trends over different periods of time after a loan has defaulted. Based on its analysis of historical trends, the 
Company has assessed that significant recoveries happen in the year in which default has occurred. Accordingly, 
it believes no significant difference arises from discounting such recoveries for determining ultimate loss rates.

	 D)	 The movement of expected credit loss has been disclosed in note no. 41.8

38.2	 Market risk

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market factor. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, 
credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Company is exposed to two types of market risks as follows:

38.2a	Interest rate risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates.

	 We are subject to interest rate risk, principally because we lend to clients at fixed interest rates and for periods that may 
differ from our funding sources, while our borrowings are at both fixed and variable interest rates for different periods. 
We assess and manage our interest rate risk by managing our assets and liabilities. Our Asset Liability Management 
Committee evaluates asset liability management, and ensures that all significant mismatches, if any, are being managed 
appropriately.

38.1	 Credit risk (Contd.)
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	 Interest rate risk exposure on financial liabilities

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Fixed rate borrowings 16,384.94 10,543.88

Variable rate borrowings 16,574.26 18,536.74

Total borrowings* 32,959.20 29,080.62

	 * Before adjustment of processing cost

	 Sensitivity analysis

	 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on the portion 
of borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the profit before tax is affected through the impact on 
floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Finance cost
Impact of profit before tax Impact on equity

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Increase by 50 basis points (82.87) (92.68) (82.87) (92.68)

Decrease by 50 basis points 82.87 92.68 82.87 92.68

	 The above sensitivity has been calculated holding all other variables constant.

	 As the company has accumulated losses, the tax impact has not been considered for sensitivity.

38.2b	Liquidity risk				  

	 Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations. Liquidity risk arises due to 
the unavailability of adequate funds at an appropriate cost or tenure. The objective of liquidity risk management is to 
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company consistently 
generates sufficient cash flows from operating and financing activities to meet its financial obligations as and when 
they fall due. Our resource mobilization team sources funds from multiple sources, including from banks, financial 
institutions and capital markets to maintain a healthy mix of sources. The resource mobilization team is responsible 
for diversifying fundraising sources, managing interest rate risks and maintaining a strong relationship with banks, 
financial institutions, mutual funds, insurance companies, other domestic and foreign financial institutions and rating 
agencies to ensure the liquidity risk is well addressed. The maturity schedule for all financial liabilities and assets are 
regularly reviewed and monitored. Company has a asset liability management (ALM) policy and ALM Committee to 
review and monitor the liquidity risk and ensure the compliance with the prescribed regulatory requirement. The ALM 
Policy prescribes the detailed guidelines for managing the liquidity risk.

38.2a	Interest rate risk (Contd.)
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	 The table below summarises the carrying value and contractual cash flows of the Company’s financial liabilities:

Particulars
Carrying 

value
Contractual cash flows

Less than 1 year 1 year to 5 years Total
March 31, 2023
Trade payables 7.39 7.39 - 7.39
Debt securities 1,929.31 1,929.31 - 1,929.31
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 30,015.69 21,054.73 9,474.74 30,529.47
Subordinated liabilities 500.42 0.42 500.00 500.42
Other financial liabilities 1,725.49 1,725.49 - 1,725.49
Total 34,178.30 24,717.34 9,974.74 34,692.08
March 31, 2022
Trade payables 14.71 14.71 - 14.71
Debt securities 4,304.74 2,104.74 2,200.00 4,304.74
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 23,992.03 13,682.26 10,593.20 24,275.46
Subordinated liabilities 500.42 0.42 500.00 500.42
Other financial liabilities 219.09 219.09 - 219.09
Total 29,030.99 16,021.22 13,293.20 29,314.42

39	 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities				  

	 The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be 
recovered or settled.			 

Assets
As at March 31, 2023

Within 12 Months After 12 Months Total
Cash and cash equivalents  2,133.33  -    2,133.33 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  2,232.68  2,333.47  4,566.15 
Trade receivables  68.57  -    68.57 
Loans 26,266.62  7,621.07  33,887.69 
Other financial assets  1,615.56  1,199.73  2,815.29 
Tax assets (net)  217.36  793.46  1,010.82 
Property, plant and equipment  -    38.51  38.51 
Other intangible assets  -    22.78  22.78 
Other non-financial assets  73.19  -    73.19

Assets
As at March 31, 2022

Within 12 Months After 12 Months Total
Cash and cash equivalents  3,055.61  -    3,055.61 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  3,513.25  787.17  4,300.42 
Trade receivables  -    -    -   
Loans  24,699.52  5,025.50  29,725.02 
Other financial assets 200.15  89.67  289.82 
Tax assets (net)  155.53  852.53  1,008.06 
Property, plant and equipment  -    66.20  66.20 
Other intangible assets  -    25.79  25.79 
Other non-financial assets  74.25  -    74.25

38.2b	Liquidity risk (Contd.)
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39	 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (Contd.)

Liabilities
As at March 31, 2023

Within 12 Months After 12 Months Total

Trade payables  7.39  -    7.39 

Debt securities  1,929.31  -    1,929.31 

Borrowings (other than debt securities)  20,711.02  9,304.67  30,015.69 

Subordinated liabilities  0.42  500.00  500.42 

Other financial liabilities  1,725.49  -    1,725.49 

Provisions  81.43  37.68  119.11 

Other non-financial liabilities  56.78  -    56.78 

Liabilities
As at March 31, 2022

Within 12 Months After 12 Months Total

Trade payables  11.29  3.42  14.71 

Debt securities  2,104.74  2,200.00  4,304.74 

Borrowings (other than debt securities)  13,625.34  10,366.69  23,992.03 

Subordinated liabilities  0.42  500.00  500.42 

Other financial liabilities  219.09  -    219.09 

Provisions  71.18  37.03  108.21 

Other non-financial liabilities  34.76  -    34.76 

	 For the year ended March 31, 2023, all borrowings are disclosed based on the contractual maturities since loan covenant 
breaches, if any, have been  waived off by the lenders.
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40	 Financial instruments and related disclosures

	 This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional 
information on-balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

	 The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the 
basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of Financial asset, Financial liability and 
equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

A) 	 Categories of financial instruments

	 Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial 
instruments:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
a) Measured at amortised cost

i) Cash and cash equivalents 2,133.33 2,133.33 3,055.61 3,055.61
ii) Bank balances other than cash and cash 

equivalents
4,566.15 4,566.15 4,300.42 4,300.42

iii) Trade receivables 68.57 68.57 - -
iv) Loans 33,887.69 33,887.69 29,725.02 29,725.02
v) Other financial assets 2,815.29 2,815.29 289.82 289.82
Sub-total 43,471.03 43,471.03 37,370.87 37,370.87

b) Measured at Fair value through profit or loss
i) Investments - -  - -
Sub-total - - - -

c) Measured at Fair value through other 
comprehensive income
i) Loans - - - -
Sub-total - - - -

Total financial assets 43,471.03 43,471.03 37,370.87 37,370.87
Financial liabilities
a) Measured at amortised cost

i) Payables 7.39 7.39 14.71 14.71
ii) Debt securities 1,929.31 1,929.31 4,304.74 4,304.74
iii) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 30,015.69 30,015.69 23,992.03 23,992.03
iv) Subordinated debt 500.42 500.42 500.42 500.42
v) Other financial liabilities 1,725.49 1,725.49 219.09 219.09

Total financial liabilities 34,178.30 34,178.30 29,030.99 29,030.99

	 Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which 
are not recorded and measured at fair value in the Company’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated 
for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above 
tables.				  
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	 Loans measured at amortised cost

	 The management assessed the fair values of loans approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term 
maturities or the general realization equal to the carrying value of these instruments.

	 Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

	 For other financial assets that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are 
net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: cash, cash equivalents, 
other bank balances, trade receivables and other financial assets.

	 Debt Securities, subordinated liabilities and other borrowings measured at amortised cost
	 The fair values of debts are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on observable future cash flows based 

on terms, discounted at a rate that reflects market risks.	

	 Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

	 For other financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts are a 
reasonable approximation of their fair value.  Such instruments include trade and other payables.

B)	 Fair value hierarchy

	 Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted 
prices. This includes listed equity and mutual funds instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity and 
mutual funds instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting 
period.

	 Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an 
active market (for example over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the 
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required 
to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

	 Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): If one or more of the significant inputs is not 
based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

C)	 Utilization of Borrowed Funds and Securities Premium

	 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend 
or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any 
fund from any party(ies) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.	

40	 Financial instruments and related disclosures (Contd.)
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CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

41	 RBI Disclosures

41.1 	 Disclosure as required under RBI Master Direction DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 
01, 2016 (as amended):

	 Capital to Risk Assets Ratio

Capital ratios
Capital 
funds

Total risk 
weighted assets

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Variance

Tier I capital as a percentage of 
total risk weighted assets (%)

9,445.90 41,445.81 22.79% 25.20% -9.56%

Tier II capital as a percentage of 
total risk weighted assets (%)

281.15 41,445.81 0.68% 1.11% -38.89%

Total capital (%)  9,727.05  41,445.81 23.47% 26.31% -10.80%

41.2 	Liquidity coverage ratio

	 Based on the requirements mentioned in RBI circular no. RBI/2019-20/88 D.O.R. NBFC (PD CC.No.102/03.310.001/2019-20) 
dated November 04, 2019 liquidity coverage ratio is not applicable on the company and hence the same is not disclosed.

41.3 	Ratings

Particulars Rating Agency Ratings Date Valid upto Amount

Term borrowings from banks 
and sub debt

Aquite BBB 10-May-22 10-May-23 400.00 Crore

Non-convertible debentures  ICRA BB+ (Stable) 31-May-22 31-May-23 77.00 Crore

41.4 	The Company has no exposure to Capital Market (apart from indirect exposure through Investments in mutual funds 
as disclosed above) or has not issued any gold loans.

41.5 	Exposure to real estate sector, both direct & indirect

	 The Company does not have any direct or indirect exposure to the real estate sector as at March 31, 2023.

41.6 	Other disclosures

	 a)	 The Company, during the current year and previous year, has no exposure in derivatives.

	 b)	 It has also not transferred any loans through securitization nor has purchased or sold any non-performing financial 
assets during the said periods.

	 c)	 The Company has not engaged in financing of any holding company products. During the year, no Single Borrower 
Limit (SBL)/Group Borrower Limit (GBL) was exceeded by the Company.

	 d)	 The Company is not registered with any other financial sector regulators.

	 e)	 During the current and previous years, no penalties were imposed by the RBI and other regulators.

	 f )	 There were no drawdowns from reserves, concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs during the 
current and previous years.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

41	 RBI Disclosures (Contd.)

41.7	 Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities

	 Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023

Particulars
Liabilities Assets

Borrowings from 
banks and others

Market 
borrowings

Total Advances Total 

 Up to one Month  2,752.38  279.31  3,031.69  2,940.53  2,940.53 

 Over one Month to 2 Months   2,339.17  275.00  2,614.17  2,458.93  2,458.93 

 Over 2 Months up to 3 Months   2,206.75  275.00  2,481.75  2,468.08  2,468.08 

 Over 3  Months up to 4 Months   2,027.05  275.00  2,302.05  2,432.20  2,432.20 

 Over 4  Months up to 6 Months   3,652.18  550.00  4,202.18  5,032.26  5,032.26 

 Over 6 Months to 1 Year   8,077.62  275.00  8,352.62  11,228.95  11,228.95 

 Over 1 Year to 3 Years  9,974.74  -    9,974.74  7,571.01  7,571.01 

 Over 3 Years to 5 Years  -    -    -    -    -   

 Over 5 Years  -    -    -    -    -

 Total  31,029.89  1,929.31  32,959.20  34,131.96  34,131.96

	 1.	 All borrowings are disclosed based on the contractual maturities since loan covenant breaches, if any, have been  
waived off by the lenders.

	 2.	 The maturity pattern of advances has been presented considering the effect of subsequent moratorium provided 
to the borrowers after the balance sheet date.

	 Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022

Particulars
Liabilities Assets

Borrowings from 
banks and others

Market 
borrowings

Total Advances Total 

 Up to one Month  1,239.57  179.74  1,419.31  2,240.27  2,240.27 

 Over one Month to 2 Months   1,038.23  -    1,038.23  2,487.52  2,487.52 

 Over 2 Months up to 3 Months   1,140.40  -    1,140.40  2,667.15  2,667.15 

 Over 3  Months up to 4 Months   1,032.18  -    1,032.18  2,534.52  2,534.52 

 Over 4  Months up to 6 Months   3,428.89  -    3,428.89  5,132.48  5,132.48 

 Over 6 Months to 1 Year   5,803.41  1,925.00  7,728.41  9,637.58  9,637.58 

 Over 1 Year to 3 Years  10,843.20  2,200.00  13,043.20  5,803.55  5,803.55 

 Over 3 Years to 5 Years  250.00  -    250.00  -    -   

 Over 5 Years  -    -    -    -    -

 Total  24,775.88  4,304.74  29,080.62  30,503.07  30,503.07

	 Note: The above information has been considered as per the Asset Liability Management Report compiled by the 
Management and reviewed by the ALM Committee. The maturity pattern include future interest inflows/outflows on 
advances/borrowings.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 41.9	 Notes to the balance sheet of a non deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company as  required 
under RBI master direction DOR.CRE.REC.NO.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on 
“Scale Based Regulation (SBR); A revised regulatory framework” (Contd.)

D)	 Corporate governance (Contd.)

Details of any relationship amongst the Directors inter-se shall be disclosed - NA

Committees of the Board and their composition

Audit Committee

Sl. No. Name of Director
Member of 

committee since
Capacity

Number of meetings 
of the committee No of shares 

held in NBFC
Held Attended

1 Mr. Rana Som 2021 Chairperson 5 5 NIL

2 Mr. Dipankar Chatterji 2016 Independent 5 5 NIL

3 Mr. Sandip Das 2022 Non-Executive 5 5 NIL

Brief terms of reference of Audit Committee:

a)	 To review the Financial Reporting, ensuring the correctness & suitability of Financial Statements;

b)	 Recommendation of Internal and External Auditors, scope of their Audits and Audit reports to the Board;

c)	 To review the functioning of the whistle-blower mechanism;

d)	 Reviewing and scrutinizing with management the periodic financial statements/results before submission to the 
Board, focusing primarily on:

	 (i)	 matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report 
in terms of Clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

	 (ii)	 any changes in accounting policies and practices;

	 (iii)	 any related party transaction;

	 (iv)	 the adequacy of internal audit function;

e)	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into the matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter 
to the Board;

f )	 To ensure that an Information System Audit of the internal systems and processes is conducted yearly to assess 
operational risks faced by the Company;

g	 To carry out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee;

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Sl. No. Name of Director
Member of 

committee since
Capacity

Number of meetings 
of the committee No of shares 

held in NBFC
Held Attended

1 Mr. Rana Som 2021 Chairperson 4 4 NIL

2 Mr. Dipankar Chatterji 2016 Independent 4 4 NIL

3 Mr. Sandip Das 2022 Non-Executive 4 4 NIL
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74210WB1993PTC057457

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 41.9	 Notes to the balance sheet of a non deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company as  required 
under RBI master direction DOR.CRE.REC.NO.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on 
“Scale Based Regulation (SBR); A revised regulatory framework” (Contd.)

D)	 Corporate governance (Contd.)

Brief Terms of reference of Remuneration and Nomination Committee:

a)	 To evaluate the skill sets, knowledge and experience required before the appointment of Independent Director and on 
the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities of an independent director. The person 
recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such 
description; To review the Financial Reporting, ensuring the correctness & suitability of Financial Statements;

b)	 To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent Directors and the Board of Directors;

c)	 Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors; To review the functioning of the whistle-blower mechanism;

d)	 To extend or to continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation of independent directors;

e)	 To identify those who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors for their appointment and removal;

f )	 To oversee the framing, review and implementation of compensation policy of the company with the approval of the 
Board;

g)	 To work in close coordination with Risk Management Committee of the company to achieve effective alignment 
between compensation and risks;

h)	 To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/existing directors and that there is no conflict of interest in appointment 
of directors on Board of the company, KMP and senior management;

Risk Management Committee

Sl. No. Name of Director
Member of 

committee since
Capacity

Number of meetings 
of the committee No of shares 

held in NBFC
Held Attended

1 Mr. Subrata Gupta 2022 Chairperson 1 1 NIL

2 Mr. Rana Som 2021 Independent 1 1 NIL

3 Mr. Dipankar Chatterji 2021 Independent 1 1 NIL

Brief terms of reference of Risk Management Committee:

a)	 Formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

	 •	 A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in particular 
including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber 
security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee;

	 •	 Measures for risk mitigation, including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks;

	 •	 Business continuity plan;

b)	 Review the major risk management procedures followed at Company in regard to Operational and Process 
Risk, Credit and Portfolio Risk, Interest Rate Risk, Liquidity Risk, Strategy Risk, etc. and steps management has 
implemented to manage and mitigate identifiable risk;

c)	 Reviewing with management and the Internal Auditor about significant business risk, political risk, financial and 
control risks, Industry Risk or exposure to such risk;
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)
(All amount in ` lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d)	 Reviewing the Internal Risk Based Audit (IRBA) system at the company with awarding the Grading/Scoring;

e)	 Reviewing the Credit Risk policy including the risk acceptance criteria , identification of early warning signals 
through Internal Inspection Department , reviewing the provision and write off policies etc;

f )	 Reviewing the Operational Risk events that had occurred during the quarter and systematic improvements taken/
proposed by the Senior Management dealing with operational risk;

g)	 To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks 
associated with the business of the Company;

h)	 To keep the Board of Directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations and 
actions to be taken;

i)	 Manage Funding and Capital planning;

j)	 Pricing, profit planning (value creation and profitability) and growth projections;

IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Sl. No. Name of Director
Member of 

committee since
Capacity

Number of meetings 
of the committee No of shares 

held in NBFC
Held Attended

1 Mr. Subrata Gupta	 2022 Chairperson 1 1 NIL

2 Mr. Rana Som 2021 Independent 1 1 NIL

3 Mr. Dipankar Chatterji 2016 Independent 1 1 NIL

4 Mr. Sourav Ghosh 2020 Executive 1 1 NIL

5 Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh 2020 Executive 1 1 NIL

Brief Terms of reference of IT Strategy Committee

a)	 To review, oversee and ensure ongoing IT activities are based on or are developed, maintained and implemented in 
accordance with the security requirements;

b)	 To review and implement changes in the policy and procedures of Network management;

c)	 To review and analyse web-filter management;

d)	 To review and implement IT security, Server, Patch and Change management;

e)	 To review the set of standards and procedures followed for procurement of IT assets;

f )	 To review and verify IT Asset Management are in right place;

g)	 To review and verify Licence and Warranty management as well as Vendor management;

h)	 To review Incident management arising out of accidental and malicious disruption of business processes;

i)	 To review policy on IT Physical and Environmental Security policy and procedure;

j)	 To review and monitor the processes for Back-up scheduling and retention;

k)	 To review, establish and ensure implementing procedures for responding to an emergency or other occurrence 
hampering Business Continuity;

 41.9	 Notes to the balance sheet of a non deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company as  required 
under RBI master direction DOR.CRE.REC.NO.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on 
“Scale Based Regulation (SBR); A revised regulatory framework” (Contd.)

D)	 Corporate governance (Contd.)
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 41.9	 Notes to the balance sheet of a non deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company as  required 
under RBI master direction DOR.CRE.REC.NO.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on 
“Scale Based Regulation (SBR); A revised regulatory framework” (Contd.)

D)	 Corporate governance (Contd.)

l)	 To review and ensure Information resources are protected by the use of access control systems that include both 
internal as well as external;

m)	 To ensure due compliance are adhered to in terms of applicable laws, rules, guidelines set out by the regulators and 
the government;

CSR COMMITTEE

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director
Member of 

committee since
Capacity

Number of meetings 
of the committee No of shares 

held in NBFC
Held Attended

1 Mr. Rana Som 2020 Chairperson 0 0 NIL

2 Mr. Sourav Ghosh 2020 Executive 0 0 NIL

3 Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh 2020 Executive 0 0 NIL

Brief terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

a)	 Formulation and recommendation to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, which shall indicate the 
activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013;

b)	 Recommendation of the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities and monitoring the same;

c)	 Monitoring the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time;

General Body Meetings

Give details of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body Meetings

Sl. 
No.

Type of meeting 
(Annual/ Extraordinary)

Date and place Special resolutions passed

1 Annual General Meeting
June 30, 2022 
at Kolkata

• To appoint Mr. Subrata Gupta (DIN:  06833844) as an Independent 
Director of the company.

• To appoint Mr. Sandip Das (DIN: 09345602) as Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director of the company.

2
Extraordinary 
General Meeting

August 17, 2022 
at Kolkata

• To approve issue of equity shares of the Company up to `600 
lakhs. on preferential basis to existing members – Ms Abira 
Majumder, Ms Aatreyee Majumder and Mr. Adipta Majumder.

3
Extraordinary 
General Meeting

March 21, 2023 
at Kolkata

• Re-appointment of Mr. Sourav Ghosh (DIN: 08154243) as 
Managing Director of the company for another term of three 
years and increase in remuneration.

• Re-appointment of Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh (DIN: 07475085) as 
Whole-time Director of the company for another term of three 
years and increase in remuneration.

• Re-appointment of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder (DIN: 08363766) as 
Whole-time Director of the company for another term of three 
years and increase in remuneration.
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Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013 - NA

Give  details  and  reasons  of  any  default  in  compliance  with  the  requirements  of Companies  Act,  2013,  including  
with  respect  to  compliance  with  accounting  and secretarial standards. – NA

Details of penalties and strictures - NA

NBFCs should disclose details of penalties or stricture imposed on it by the Reserve Bank or any other statutory authority. 
- NA

 41.9	 Notes to the balance sheet of a non deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company as  required 
under RBI master direction DOR.CRE.REC.NO.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on 
“Scale Based Regulation (SBR); A revised regulatory framework” (Contd.)

D)	 Corporate governance (Contd.)

42	 Additional information to the financial statements
	 Notes to the balance sheet of a non deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company as  required under RBI master 

direction DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated september 01, 2016, as amended

Particulars Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
overdueLiabilities side:

1) Loans & advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of accrued interest 
thereon but not paid

(a) Debentures: Secured  1,929.31 Nil

                        Unsecured Nil Nil

                          (Other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

(b)   Deferred credits Nil Nil

(c) Term loans  30,516.11 Nil

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowings Nil Nil

(e) Commercial papers Nil Nil

(f ) Public deposits Nil Nil

(g) Other loans (specify nature) Nil Nil

2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of 
interest accrued thereon but not paid):

(a) In the form of unsecured debentures Nil Nil

(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debenture where there is 
a shortfall in the value of security

Nil Nil

(c) Other public deposits Nil Nil
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42	 Additional information to the financial statements (Contd.)

Particulars   Amount 
outstandingAssets Side:

3) Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables [other than those included in 
(4) below]

(a) Secured Nil

(b) Unsecured  35,015.56 

4) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC 
activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors

(a)   Financial lease Nil

(b)   Operating lease Nil

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

(a)   Asset on hire Nil

(b)   Repossessed assets Nil

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities.

(a)   Loans where assets has been repossessed Nil

(b)   Loans other than (a) above Nil

	 5)	 Break up of investments

Current investments
Amount 

outstanding

(A) Quoted:

(i)       Shares: Nil

(a)   Equity

(b)   Preference Nil

(ii) Debentures and bonds Nil

(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil

(iv) Government securities Nil

(v) Others (please specify) Nil

(B) Unquoted:

(i)      Shares: Nil

(a)   Equity

(b)   Preference Nil

(ii) Debentures and bonds Nil

(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil

(iv) Government securities Nil

(v) Others (please specify) Nil
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42	 Additional information to the financial statements (Contd.)

	 5)	 Break up of investments (Contd.)

Long term investments
Amount 

outstanding
(A) Quoted:

(i)       Shares: Nil
(a)   Equity
(b)   Preference Nil

(ii) Debentures and bonds Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil

(B) Unquoted:
(i)       Shares: Nil

(a)   Equity
(b)   Preference Nil

(ii) Debentures and bonds Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil

	 6)	 Borrower group-wise classification of assets, financed (3) and (4) above:	 

Category
Amount net of provisions

Secured Unsecured Total
(i) Related parties

(a)   Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil
(b)   Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil
(c)   Other related parties Nil Nil Nil

(ii) Other than related parties Nil  33,887.69  33,887.69 
Total Nil  33,887.69  33,887.69

	

	 7)	 Investor group wise classification of all investments (Current and long term) in shares and securities (both 
quoted and unquoted category)

 Particulars
Market value/ Break-up  

on fair value or NAV
Book value

(i) Related parties

(a)   Subsidiaries Nil Nil

(c)   Other related parties Nil Nil

(ii) Other than related parties Nil Nil
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42	 Additional information to the financial statements (Contd.)

	 8)	 Other information:			 

Particulars
Market value/ 

Break-up on fair 
value or NAV

(i) Gross non-performing assets*

(a) Related parties Nil

(b) Other than related parties 1,674.54

(ii) Net non performing assets*

(a) Related parties Nil

(b) Other than related parties 546.67

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt Nil

	 * Non-performing assets represents contracts which are overdue for more than 90 days.

43	 Segment information
	 The Company, being a NBFC-MFI operates in a single reportable operating segment i.e. business of micro financing 

activities and all the other activities revolve around the same and hence there are no separate reportable segments as 
per IND AS 108 ‘ Operating segments’. The entire operation of the company is within India.

44	 Previous year’s figures
	 Comparative figures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever necessary, make them comparable 

with those of the current year figures.

45	 Adoption in board meeting
	 These financial statements have been adopted in the meeting of Board of Directors dated May 12, 2023 which is subject 

to the approval of the shareholder in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the company.

For LODHA & CO	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 301051E

Boman R Parakh	 Tanusree Ghosh	 Aatreyee Majumder
Partner	 Company Secretary	 Whole Time Director
Membership No.: 053400 		  DIN: 08363766

	 Arun Gupta	 Sourav Ghosh
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director
		  DIN: 08154243
Place: Kolkata	 Place: Kolkata
Date: May 12, 2023	 Date: May 12, 2023
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ANNAUL REPORT OF THE INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE OF JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED FOR 

CALENDER YEAR 2022 AS PER SECTION 21 OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 AND AS PER RULE 14 OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) RULES, 2013  –

	 For Jagaran Microfin Private Limited

Place: Kolkata	 Aatreyee Majumder
Date: 30.01.2023 	 Presiding Officer

Sl. No. Particulars Remarks

1 Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year NIL

2 Number of complaints disposed of during the year NIL

3 Number of cases pending for more than 90 days NIL

4 Number of workshops and awareness programmes against sexual harassment carried out 10

5 Nature of action taken by the employer NA
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Registered Office & Corporate Office

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Link Intime India Private Limited (for NCD), 46-C, Jawaharlal Nehru Road, Kankaria 
Estates, Bhowanipore, Kolkata - 700071

Contact details: +91 (033) 22890539100

CB Management Services Private Limited, P-22, Bondel Road, Ballygunge Park, 
Ballygunge, Kolkata - 700019

Contact details: +91 (033) 4011 6700 

Registrar & Transfer Agents

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited, Windsor, 6th Floor,  
Office No - 604, C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai – 400 098

Contact Details: +91 (022) 4922 0555
Email: dt.mumbai@ctltrustee.com
ComplianceCTL: Mumbai@ctltrustee.com
Website:  www.catalysttrustee.com
Contact Person: Ms Tamkeen Sheikh

Debenture Trustee 
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